
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 9, 2020 | 7PM 
CITY OF SUNNYVALE | WEST CONFERENCE ROOM  
456 WEST OLIVE AVENUE | SUNNYVALE, CA 94024 

 
Discussion & action may be taken on any of the following items.  

 
1.  Welcome and Roll Call (Klein) 

 
7:00 PM 

2.  Consideration of approval of consent agenda:   
a. Approval of November 2019 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
b. Acceptance of financial reports:  

• *CASCC November 2019 Reports 
• *CASCC Annual General Membership Dinner Budget vs. Actuals 
• *SCSC Roundtable | ESA invoices  

o October 2019: $19,591.82 
o November 2019: $7,364.53 

Billing to date $207,010.92 of total $236,986.70 
c. *Approval for Executive Director to contract with Attorney to review SCSC 

Roundtable Bylaws and MOU not to exceed $5,000.00 with funds from SCSC 
Roundtable revenue.   
*items also reviewed by Executive Board of Directors at January 3, 2020 meeting 
 

 

3.  Presentations:  
a. Valley Water:  Implementation of Model Water Efficiency Standards for New 

Development by Domingo Candeelas, Office of Government Relations 
b. Seamless Bay Area: Policy proposals to achieve a seamlessly integrated, high-

ridership regional public transportation by Adina Levin, Advocacy Director, 
Seamless Bay Area 
• consideration of resolution supporting Seamless Transit Principles 

 

 
7:05 PM 
 
7:20 PM 

4.  New Business:  
a. Goal Setting – discussion and prioritizing of goals for 2020.  
b. LAFCO:  request for feedback (support) of a LAFCO legislative proposal to delete 

a restriction related to the Santa Clara LAFCO commissioner appointments, 
specifically, the criteria for public member appointments as it relates to city 
representation on the commission. 
 

 
7:40 PM 
8:00 PM 

a.  Committee Reports:  
a. Legislative Action Committee (Fligor): Consideration and adoption of 

Transportation Guiding Principles and any other action taken by LAC.  
 

 
8:15 PM 
 
 

b.  City Manager/SCCCMA Report (Kent Steffens, City Manager, Sunnyvale):  update from 
Santa Clara County City Managers Association - informational 
 

8:35 PM 

c.  Executive Director Report (Andi Jordan) – informational 
a. Planning Collaborative update  
b. Participation in Regional Economic Forum  

8:40 PM 

01/07/2020 
Page 1 of 118



Board of Directors Agenda  
January 9, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

d.  Public comment on items not on the agenda  
 

8:45 PM 

e.  Joys and Challenges: opportunity for members of the Board to share what is happening 
in their community. 
 

 

f.  Members straw poll on priorities and goals for 2020.  Results given at February Board of 
Directors meeting.  
 

8:55 PM 

g.  Adjourn until Thursday, February 13, 2020 at 7PM, Sunnyvale City Hall 9:00 PM 
   

 
 
 

01/07/2020 
Page 2 of 118



Cities Association of Santa Clara County – 2020 meeting Calendar 
 

 
Executive Board:  

3-4:30 PM 
 

 
Board of Directors:  

7-9 PM  

 
General Membership:  

6-9 PM 

 
Cities Selection 

Committee  

 
Legislative Action 

Committee 

January 3, 2020 January 9, 2020 -- January 9, 2020 January 9, 2020 
February 7, 2020 February 13, 2020 -- tbd tbd 

March 6, 2020 March 12, 2020 -- tbd tbd 
April 3, 2020 April 9, 2020 -- tbd tbd 
May 8, 2020 No Board Meeting May 14, 2020 tbd tbd 
June 5, 2020 June 11, 2020 -- tbd tbd 
No meeting No meeting No meeting No meeting No meeting 

August 7, 2020 August 13, 2020 -- tbd tbd 
September 4, 2020**  September 10, 2020 -- tbd tbd 

October 2, 2020 October 8, 2020** -- tbd tbd 
November 6, 2020 November 12, 2020 -- tbd tbd 
December 4, 2020 No meeting December 3, 2020 tbd tbd 

 
Executive Board of Directors: 2020 members are Mayor Larry Klein, Councilmember Marico Sayoc, Vice Mayor Chappie Jones, Vice Mayor 
Margaret Abe-Koga, Vice Mayor Neysa Fligor, Councilmember Manny Cappello, Kent Steffens (SCCCMA), Andi Jordan 
 
Cities Selection Committee: Mayor or Mayor’s designee (per state law).  Meets as needed, prior to the Board of Directors meeting.  May meet for 
10 minutes or an hour depending on number of appointments and interest received.  
 
Legislative Action Committee: per CASCC by-laws, standing committee.  Each city has one representative. Meets as needed prior to the Board of 
Directors meeting.  
 
An example of the meeting schedule for a typical Thursday night:   

§ 6PM Legislative Action Committee  
§ 6:40 Cities Selection Committee  
§ 7-9PM Board of Directors Meeting 

 
**conflicts:   
Executive Board: September 4, 2020** (Labor Day Weekend)  
Board: October 7-9 with League of California Cities Annual Conference, Long Beach  

01/07/2020 
Page 3 of 118



first name last name jurisdiction appointment term expires 
Lisa Matichak Mountain View ALUC May-20
Glenn Hendricks Sunnyvale ALUC May-20
Liz Gibbons Campbell ABAG 2 years June-20
Chris Clark Mountain View ABAG 2 years June-20
Rod Sinks Mountain View ABAG - alternate 2 years June-20
Anthony Phan Milpitas ABAG - alternate 2 years June-20
Rod Sinks Cupertino BAAQMD 2 years November-22
Liz Kniss Palo Alto BAAQMD 2 years March-20
Cricket Rubino Morgan Hill Sourcewise 2 years June-20
Rob Rennie Los Gatos LAFCO May-20
Russell Melton Sunnyvale LAFCO - Alternate May-20
Jeannie Bruins Los Altos MTC February-23
Larry Klein Sunnyvale SCC Local Board: Cal-id/RAN ongoing
Rob Rennie Los Gatos OAC: South County & West Valley Cities September-21
Debi Davis Santa Clara OAC: Central County Cities September-21
Lisa Matichak Mountain View OAC: North County Cities December-20
Liz Gibbons Campbell OAC-Alternate: South County & West Valley Cities September-21
Russell Melton Sunnyvale OAC-Alternate: Central County Cities September-21
Lydia Kou Palo Alto OAC-Alternate: North County Cities September-20
Lisa Matichak Mountain View SVRIA October-21
Debi Davis Santa Clara SVRIA - Alternate October-21
Kathy Watanabe Santa Clara RWRC: Central County July-23
Nancy Landry Sunnyvale RWRC: Smart Station January-22
Pat Showalter Mountain View RWRC: Member at large January-22
Susan Landry Campbell RWRC:  Member at large January-21
Mary-Lynne Bernald Saratoga RWRC:  West Valley September-22

Gilroy RWRC: South County July-23
Rod Sinks Cupertino RWRC: (North County) April-22
Glenn Hendricks Sunnyvale Measure A (2016 Housing Bond) 3 yrs June-22
Larry Klein Sunnyvale Countywide Redevelopment Successor Agency ongoing
Dave Sykes San José Countywide Redevelopment Successor Agency - Alternateongoing
Neysa Fligor Los Altos ABAG Regional Planning Committee June-22
Nancy Smith Sunnyvale Women's Equality 2020 Leadership Council until event ex-officio

City Selection Committee Appointees

01/07/2020 
Page 4 of 118



 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 14 | 7PM 

CITY OF SUNNYVALE | WEST CONFERENCE ROOM  
456 WEST OLIVE AVENUE | SUNNYVALE, CA 94024 

 
ITEM 1: Welcome and Roll Call by President/Mayor Manny Cappello (Saratoga):  

Campbell Paul Resnikoff 
Cupertino  Rod Sinks 
Gilroy  absent 
Los Altos   Jan Pepper 
Los Altos Hills  Michelle Wu 
Los Gatos  Marico Sayoc 
Milpitas  absent 
Monte Sereno Rowena Turner   
Morgan Hill Rich Constantine  
Mountain View  Lisa Matichak  
Palo Alto Liz Kniss 
San José Chappie Jones 
Santa Clara  Debi Davis 
Saratoga Manny Cappello 
Sunnyvale Larry Klein 
SCCCMA* James Lindsay  
Executive Director* Andi Jordan 

*Ex-officio 
 
Also in attendance:  
Councilmember Margaret Abe-Koga, Mountain View 
Councilmember Jeannie Bruins, Los Altos 
Councilmember Anita Enander, Los Altos 
Councilmember Neysa Fligor, Los Altos 
Councilmember Lydia Kou, Palo Alto 
Councilmember Liz Kniss, Palo Alto 
Councilmember Liz Gibbons,  
Steve Preminger, Santa Clara County  
Girish Balachandran, SVCE 
Lori Mitchell, SJCE 
Teddy Daligga, Santa Clara County Public Health 
Nicole Coxe, Santa Clara County Public Health 
Bonnie Broderick, Santa Clara County Public Health  
Supervisor Cindy Chavez, Santa Clara County  
Scott Strickland, Chief of Staff, Officer of Cindy Chavez, Santa Clara County 

01/07/2020 
Page 5 of 118



Board of Directors Minutes  
November 14, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 
ITEM 2: Consideration of approval of consent agenda:   

a. October 2019 Board of Directors Minutes 
b. Financial report: October 2019 
c. Annual General Membership Dinner Budget  

 
Motion to approve by Councilmember Davis.  Second by Rowena Turner.   
Motion passes unanimously. 13-0-0-2  
 
Motion: Davis (Santa Clara)  
Second: Turner (Monte Sereno)  
AYES: 13 Resnikoff (Campbell), Sinks (Cupertino), Pepper (Los Altos), Wu (Los Altos Hills), Sayoc (Los 
Gatos), Monte Sereno (Turner), Constantine (Morgan Hill), Matichak (Mountain View), Kniss (Palo 
Alto), Jones (San José), Davis (Santa Clara), Cappello (Saratoga), Klein (Sunnyvale) 
NAYES: 0  
ABSTENTIONS: 0  
ABSENT: 2 Velasco (Gilroy), Montano (Milpitas) 

 
ITEM 3: Discussion about whether the Board of Directors should support the push to transform Pacific 
Gas & Electric from an investor-owned private utility into a customer-owned cooperative by Girish 
Balachandran, SVCE, & Lori Mitchell, SJCE.  Motion by Vice Mayor Jan Pepper (Los Altos) to support the 
push to transform Pacific Gas & Electric from an investor – owned private utility into a customer-owned 
cooperative or public agency and support San José Mayor’s letter.  Second by Councilmember Liz Kniss 
(Palo Alto).  
 

Motion: Pepper (Los Altos)  
Second: Kniss (Palo Alto)  
AYES: 9 Sinks (Cupertino), Pepper (Los Altos), Sayoc (Los Gatos), Constantine (Morgan Hill), Kniss 
(Palo Alto), Jones (San José), Davis (Santa Clara), Cappello (Saratoga), Klein (Sunnyvale) 
NAYES: 0  
ABSTENTIONS: 4 Resnikoff (Campbell), Wu (Los Altos Hills), Turner (Monte Sereno), Matichak 
(Mountain View) 
ABSENT: 2 Velasco (Gilroy), Montano (Milpitas) 

 
ITEM 4: Community Conversations – informational.  

Supervisor Cindy Chavez, Santa Clara County will attend to have a conversation with the Board 
of Directors.  Topics of discussion may include VTA, CalTrain, RHNA Methodology Committee, 
ABAG|MTC, Cities Association of Santa Clara County Planning Collaborative, mental health 
services to schools (Lora’s law) 

 
ITEM 5:  Election of 2020 Executive Board of Directors – action  

Slate of Candidates include:   
§ President - Sunnyvale Mayor Larry Klein;  
§ 1st Vice President – Los Gatos Councilmember Marico Sayoc;  
§ 2nd Vice President – Vice Mayor Chappie Jones;  
§ Secretary-Treasurer – Mountain View Vice Mayor Margaret Abe-Koga; 
§ Legislative Action Committee Chair – Los Altos Councilmember Neysa Fligor; 

01/07/2020 
Page 6 of 118



Board of Directors Minutes  
November 14, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

§ Past President – Saratoga Mayor Manny Cappello 
 

Motion to approve thee 2020 Slate of Candidates for the Executive Board by Councilmember Liz 
Kniss, second by Councilmember Debi Davis. The motion passed by unanimous consent.   
1300-0-2  
AYES: 13 Resnikoff (Campbell), Sinks (Cupertino), Pepper (Los Altos), Wu (Los Altos Hills), Sayoc 
(Los Gatos), Monte Sereno (Turner), Constantine (Morgan Hill), Matichak (Mountain View), Kniss 
(Palo Alto), Jones (San José), Davis (Santa Clara), Cappello (Saratoga), Klein (Sunnyvale) 
NAYES: 0  
ABSTENTIONS: 0  
ABSENT: 2 Velasco (Gilroy), Montano (Milpitas) 
 

ITEM 6: City Manager/SCCCMA Report (James Lindsay, City Manager, Saratoga):  update from Santa 
Clara County City Managers Association – informational 
 
ITEM 7: Executive Director Report (Andi Jordan) – informational 

§ Reminder: Annual General Membership Holiday Dinner – Friday December 6, 2019 
 
ITEM 8: Joys and Challenges: opportunity for members of the Board to share what is happening in their 
community. 
 
ITEM 9: Meeting was adjourned at 8:37 PM until Thursday, January 9, 2020 at 7PM, Sunnyvale City Hall 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Andi Jordan  
Executive Director 
 

 
 
 
Minutes approved on DATE  
 
MOTION:  
SECOND:  
 
AYES:  
NOS:  
ABSTENTIONS:  
ABSENT:  
 

01/07/2020 
Page 7 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 8 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 9 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 10 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 11 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 12 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 13 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 14 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 15 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 16 of 118



Accrual Basis  Tuesday, December 31, 2019 12:31 PM GMT-08:00   1/1

CITIES ASSOCIATION OF SANTA CLARA COUNTY
BUDGET VS. ACTUALS: FY 2020 CASCC - FY20 P&L  CLASSES

July - November, 2019

CASCC TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF 
BUDGET

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF 
BUDGET

Income

Directory Income 208.35 -208.35 $0.00 $208.35 $ -208.35 0.00%

Dues Income 39,138.81 62,482.10 -23,343.29 62.64 % $39,138.81 $62,482.10 $ -23,343.29 62.64 %

Grant Revenues 208.35 -208.35 $0.00 $208.35 $ -208.35 0.00%

Total Income $39,138.81 $62,898.80 $ -23,759.99 62.23 % $39,138.81 $62,898.80 $ -23,759.99 62.23 %

GROSS PROFIT $39,138.81 $62,898.80 $ -23,759.99 62.23 % $39,138.81 $62,898.80 $ -23,759.99 62.23 %

Expenses

Office 4,820.85 -4,820.85 $0.00 $4,820.85 $ -4,820.85 0.00%

Professional Services 1,666.65 -1,666.65 $0.00 $1,666.65 $ -1,666.65 0.00%

Employee Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

Payroll Service Fees 225.00 250.00 -25.00 90.00 % $225.00 $250.00 $ -25.00 90.00 %

Payroll Taxes 2,645.63 4,125.00 -1,479.37 64.14 % $2,645.63 $4,125.00 $ -1,479.37 64.14 %

Payroll Wages/Salary 34,583.33 43,750.00 -9,166.67 79.05 % $34,583.33 $43,750.00 $ -9,166.67 79.05 %

Total Employee Expenses 37,453.96 48,125.00 -10,671.04 77.83 % $37,453.96 $48,125.00 $ -10,671.04 77.83 %

Total Professional Services 37,453.96 49,791.65 -12,337.69 75.22 % $37,453.96 $49,791.65 $ -12,337.69 75.22 %

Programs and Initiatives 2,083.35 -2,083.35 $0.00 $2,083.35 $ -2,083.35 0.00%

Total Expenses $37,453.96 $56,695.85 $ -19,241.89 66.06 % $37,453.96 $56,695.85 $ -19,241.89 66.06 %

NET OPERATING INCOME $1,684.85 $6,202.95 $ -4,518.10 27.16 % $1,684.85 $6,202.95 $ -4,518.10 27.16 %

Other Income

General Membership Meeting 2,166.65 -2,166.65 $0.00 $2,166.65 $ -2,166.65 0.00%

Membership Dinners - Proceeds 2,166.65 -2,166.65 $0.00 $2,166.65 $ -2,166.65 0.00%

Total Other Income $0.00 $4,333.30 $ -4,333.30 0.00% $0.00 $4,333.30 $ -4,333.30 0.00%

Other Expenses

General Meeting - catering 300.00 4,166.65 -3,866.65 7.20 % $300.00 $4,166.65 $ -3,866.65 7.20 %

General meeting - office 
supplies/signage

990.25 416.65 573.60 237.67 % $990.25 $416.65 $573.60 237.67 %

Membership Dinners - Cost 1,621.24 5,833.35 -4,212.11 27.79 % $1,621.24 $5,833.35 $ -4,212.11 27.79 %

Total Other Expenses $2,911.49 $10,416.65 $ -7,505.16 27.95 % $2,911.49 $10,416.65 $ -7,505.16 27.95 %

NET OTHER INCOME $ -2,911.49 $ -6,083.35 $3,171.86 47.86 % $ -2,911.49 $ -6,083.35 $3,171.86 47.86 %

NET INCOME $ -1,226.64 $119.60 $ -1,346.24 -1,025.62 % $ -1,226.64 $119.60 $ -1,346.24 -1,025.62 %

01/07/2020 
Page 17 of 118



estimate actual actual
members ($75) 85 75 $5,625.00
non members ($100) 10 12 $1,200.00
social hour tickets ($35) 0 3 $105.00
Gross $6,930.00
Net (eventbrite fees)

Notations
Income:  estimate actual
eventbrite $6,375.00 6,386.41$                    $5,200 
checks $0.00  $                       450.00 
total income $6,375.00  $                    6,836.41 
outstanding as of 12/13  $                       170.00 

Expenses estimate actual

rent $1,000.00 1,000.00$                    
non-alcoholic drinks (no coffee)/3.95 each
glassware $150.00
Appetizers, Dinner, Dessert, bar service, coffee 
& tea service, linens -  $50/per person $4,250.00
TABLE linens ROUND $12/RECTANGLE $14
(SERVICE IS $175) $700.00
gratuity - 18% $765.00
tax - 9%  
beverages $500.00 530.75$                       
comped tickets (staff/award recipient) $200.00
Insurance $176.00 176.00$                       30-Sep
Program Expenses
Entertainment: (microphone/soundsystem)
First Place Cities Champion Award $200.00
First Place Inc. - Recognition Award to President $200.00
Centerpeices/Decoration $500.00 313.76$                       

 261.47 reimbursable to Andi Jordan, 
centerpieces, lights 

photo booth $200,. 29.00$                         $29.00, 
Event supplies: name cards, frames, 
certificates, badges $350.00

87.19$                         
87.19 badges, 

Gift for Guests: 
Step and Repeat 990.25$                       step and repeat resuasable 

budget approved at 13,000 
income $4225

net cost -$2,616.00 -$1,977.22 ($8,800.00)

2019 Membership Dinner Budget:  ticket prices based on $75 member ticket - $100 non member - $35 social hour tickets 
FY 2019-

2020 
approved 

budget

5,463.73$                    

392.95$                       

Total Expenses $8,991.00 8,983.63$                    -14,000.00

01/07/2020 
Page 18 of 118



Project Manager: Steven Alverson

Andi Jordan
Executive Director
Cities Association of Santa Clara County
PO Box 3144

Los Altos, CA  94024

November 19, 2019
Invoice No: 150421

Environmental Science Associates
550 Kearny Street, Suite 800

San Francisco, CA  94108
(415) 896-5900

Project D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services for Santa Clara/Santa Cruz 
Community Roundtable

Professional Services from October 1, 2019 to October 31, 2019
          Task 0000001 Facilitate Regular Roundtable Meetings
          Subtask 0000011 1.1 Prepare For Up To 17 Roundtable Meetings
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Alverson, Steven    23.00 300.00  6,900.00
Senior Associate I

Wasserman, Evan    40.00 150.00  6,000.00
Totals 63.00 12,900.00
Total Labor 12,900.00

        $12,900.00Subtotal this Subtask:

  Subtask 0000012 1.2 Attend, Facilitate, and Interact with CASCC staff/ Roundtable Members at Up To 
17 Roundtable Meetings

 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Alverson, Steven    4.00 300.00  1,200.00
Senior Associate I

Wasserman, Evan    6.00 150.00  900.00
Totals 10.00 2,100.00
Total Labor 2,100.00

        $2,100.00Subtotal this Subtask:

  Subtask 0000013 1.3 Prepare Up To 17 Meeting Recaps and Lists of Action Items/Actions Taken
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Alverson, Steven    3.00 300.00  900.00
Senior Associate I

Wasserman, Evan    14.00 150.00  2,100.00
Totals 17.00 3,000.00
Total Labor 3,000.00

        $3,000.00Subtotal this Subtask:

       

PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT

01/07/2020 
Page 19 of 118



$18,000.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000002 Assist CASCC in Improving Roundtable Participation, Meeting Format, and 
Composition

              Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 0.00 2,100.00 2,100.00
Limit 5,100.00
Remaining 3,000.00

0.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000003 Provide Support for Work Not Currently Before the Roundtable
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Alverson, Steven    2.00 300.00  600.00
Totals 2.00 600.00
Total Labor 600.00

            Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 600.00 6,512.50 7,112.50
Limit 50,620.00
Remaining 43,507.50

$600.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000004 Follow Up with FAA and SFO on the Select Committee Recommendations
              Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 0.00 3,205.00 3,205.00
Limit 7,200.00
Remaining 3,995.00

0.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000005 Follow Up with FAA and SJC on the Southflow Recommendations
              Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 0.00 0.00 0.00
Limit 7,200.00
Remaining 7,200.00

0.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000006 Develop an FAA Advocacy Plan
              Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 0.00 0.00 0.00
Limit 21,600.00
Remaining 21,600.00

0.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000007 Prepare and Maintain the Santa Clara/Santa Cruz Community Roundtable Public 
Website

 

Page 2PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT

Project 150421D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services Invoice

01/07/2020 
Page 20 of 118



Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Alverson, Steven    2.00 300.00  600.00
Totals 2.00 600.00
Total Labor 600.00

            Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 600.00 3,900.00 4,500.00
Limit 10,820.00
Remaining 6,320.00

$600.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000ODC Other Direct Cost
    Reimbursable Expenses

Travel - Transportation 106.83
Travel - Meals 5.45
Travel - Mileage 2.44

Total Reimbursables 1.0 times 114.72 114.72

In-House Reimbursable Billing

Printing 8.5x11 b/w
ARC Printing BW 8.5X11 2,147.0 Pages @ 0.10 214.70
ARC Printing BW 8.5X11 76.0 Pages @ 0.10 7.60

Printing 8.5x11 color
ARC Printing COLOR 8.5X11 34.0 Pages @ 0.40 13.60
ARC Printing COLOR 8.5X11 103.0 Pages @ 0.40 41.20

Total In-House Reimbursables 1.0 times 277.10 277.10

        Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 391.82 9,584.57 9,976.39
Limit 16,161.70
Remaining 6,185.31

$391.82TOTAL THIS TASK:

         $19,591.82TOTAL INVOICE AMOUNT:

Outstanding Invoices

Number Date Balance
149392 10/10/2019 8,413.73
Total 8,413.73

Current Prior Total
Billings to Date 19,591.82 180,054.57 199,646.39

Remit to:

E S A
P.O. Box 92170
Elk Grove, IL  60009

TIN #:  94-1698350

Page 3PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT

Project 150421D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services Invoice

01/07/2020 
Page 21 of 118



12:25:39 PMInvoice 150421 Dated 11/19/2019Environmental Science Associates

Tuesday, November 19, 2019Billing Backup

Project D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services for Santa Clara/Santa Cruz 
Community Roundtable

Task 0000001 Facilitate Regular Roundtable Meetings

Subtask 0000011 1.1 Prepare For Up To 17 Roundtable Meetings

Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Senior Director III
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/8/2019    3.00 300.00  900.00

Prep for the October 23, 2019 Roundtable Meeting
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/9/2019    1.00 300.00  300.00

Prep for the October 23, 2019 Roundtable Meeting
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/11/2019    1.00 300.00  300.00

Conference Call with FAA & Prep
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/14/2019    2.00 300.00  600.00

Prep for the 10/23 Meeting & Checkin Call
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/18/2019    2.00 300.00  600.00

Prep for the 10/23 Meeting
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/21/2019    5.00 300.00  1,500.00

Prep for October 23rd RT Meeting
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/22/2019    6.00 300.00  1,800.00

Prep for October 23rd RT Meeting
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/23/2019    2.00 300.00  600.00

Prep for October 23rd RT Meeting
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/31/2019    1.00 300.00  300.00

December RT Meeting Space Logistics
Senior Associate I

Senior Associate I
7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/2/2019    1.50 150.00  225.00

1.5 hrs for edits to PDF prior to communication with RT, and posting 
articles to website

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/3/2019    1.50 150.00  225.00
1.5 hrs for communication to RT, correspondence tracking, and posting 
articles to website

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/4/2019    .50 150.00  75.00
.5 hr for posting articles to website

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/7/2019    1.00 150.00  150.00
1 hr for posting of materials to website and correspondence tracking

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/8/2019    1.00 150.00  150.00
1 hr for posting of materials to website and correspondence tracking and 
drafting agenda for October meeting

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/9/2019    1.00 150.00  150.00
1 hr for posting of materials to website, correspondence tracking, and 
drafting agenda for October meeting

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/11/2019    1.00 150.00  150.00
1 hr for posting of materials to website and correspondence tracking

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/14/2019    2.00 150.00  300.00
1 hr for correspondence tracking and posting materials to the website; 1 
hr for meeting time

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/15/2019    1.00 150.00  150.00
1 hr for posting documents to website and communications with staff

Page 4PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT

Project 150421D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services Invoice

01/07/2020 
Page 22 of 118



7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/16/2019    3.00 150.00  450.00
1 hr for communication and correspondence tracking regarding Oct 
meeting and agenda packet; 2 hrs for updates to FAA Status Tracking 
Matrix

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/17/2019    3.00 150.00  450.00
3 hrs for updates to the FAA status/response tracking matrix

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/18/2019    6.00 150.00  900.00
5 hrs for compiling agenda packet and communications regarding 
agenda/October meeting; 1 hr for updating the IFP Gateway Memo

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/19/2019    .50 150.00  75.00
.5 hr

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/21/2019    4.00 150.00  600.00
4 hrs for prep prior to meeting, corrspondence, updates to agenda, 
inlcuding time for printing of agenda materials and meeting materials

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/22/2019    3.50 150.00  525.00
3.5 hrs for prep prior to meeting, inlcuding time for printing of agenda 
materials and meeting materials

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/23/2019    2.00 150.00  300.00
2 hrs for work on prep materials and correspondence leading up to 
meeting and action item summary table

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/24/2019    .50 150.00  75.00
.5 hr for work on action item summary table

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/25/2019    1.00 150.00  150.00
1 hr for work on action item summary table

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/28/2019    3.00 150.00  450.00
3 hrs for drafting meeting action item summary table

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/29/2019    1.00 150.00  150.00
1 hr for drafting meeting action item summary table

7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/31/2019    2.00 150.00  300.00
2 hrs for SCSC Roundtable action item summary table finalization

Totals 63.00 12,900.00
Total Labor 12,900.00

   $12,900.00Subtotal this Subtask:

Subtask 0000012 1.2 Attend, Facilitate, and Interact with CASCC staff/ Roundtable Members at Up To 
17 Roundtable Meetings

Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Senior Director III
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/23/2019    4.00 300.00  1,200.00

Facilitate 10/23/10 RT Meeting
Senior Associate I

Senior Associate I
7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/23/2019    6.00 150.00  900.00

6 hrs for meeting time and for getting to the meeting and back
Totals 10.00 2,100.00
Total Labor 2,100.00

   $2,100.00Subtotal this Subtask:

Subtask 0000013 1.3 Prepare Up To 17 Meeting Recaps and Lists of Action Items/Actions Taken

Page 5PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT

Project 150421D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services Invoice

01/07/2020 
Page 23 of 118



Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Senior Director III
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/24/2019    2.00 300.00  600.00

SCSC RT Meeting Follow-up
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/25/2019    1.00 300.00  300.00

SCSC RT Meeting Follow-up
Senior Associate I

Senior Associate I
7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/24/2019    1.00 150.00  150.00

1 hr for work on meeting recap
7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/25/2019    3.00 150.00  450.00

3 hrs for work on meeting recap
7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/28/2019    3.00 150.00  450.00

3 hrs for drafting meeting recap and working to fix video transcipt issues
7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/29/2019    5.00 150.00  750.00

5 hrs for drafting meeting recap and working to fix video transcipt issues
7 - Wasserman, Evan 10/31/2019    2.00 150.00  300.00

2 hrs for meeting recap finalization
Totals 17.00 3,000.00
Total Labor 3,000.00

   $3,000.00Subtotal this Subtask:

TOTAL THIS TASK: $18,000.00

Task 0000003 Provide Support for Work Not Currently Before the Roundtable

Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Senior Director III
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/11/2019    1.00 300.00  300.00

Strategic Plan Edits for MLB
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/31/2019    1.00 300.00  300.00

Discuss MONA Tool w/Stanford
Totals 2.00 600.00
Total Labor 600.00

   TOTAL THIS TASK: $600.00

Task 0000007 Prepare and Maintain the Santa Clara/Santa Cruz Community Roundtable Public 
Website

Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Senior Director III
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/10/2019    1.00 300.00  300.00

Articles for SCSC Roundtable Website
1 - Alverson, Steven 10/31/2019    1.00 300.00  300.00

Update the SCSC Website News Page
Totals 2.00 600.00
Total Labor 600.00

Page 6PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT

Project 150421D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services Invoice

01/07/2020 
Page 24 of 118



   TOTAL THIS TASK: $600.00

Task 0000ODC Other Direct Cost

  Reimbursable Expenses

Travel - Transportation
EX 000000049865 10/23/2019 Alverson, Steven / Parking 12.00
EX 000000049865 10/23/2019 Alverson, Steven / Train Fare 74.00
EX 000000049865 10/23/2019 Alverson, Steven / Uber to Santa Clara City 

Hall
9.42

EX 000000049865 10/23/2019 Alverson, Steven / Uber to Santa Clara 
Train Station

11.41

Travel - Meals
EX 000000049865 10/23/2019 Alverson, Steven / Lunch 5.45

Travel - Mileage
EX 000000049865 10/23/2019 Alverson, Steven / Drive to Sacramento 

Train Station
2.44

Total Reimbursables 1.0 times 114.72 114.72

In-House Reimbursable Billing

Printing 8.5x11 b/w
ARC Printing BW 8.5X11 2,147.0 Pages @ 0.10 214.70
ARC Printing BW 8.5X11 76.0 Pages @ 0.10 7.60

Printing 8.5x11 color
ARC Printing COLOR 8.5X11 34.0 Pages @ 0.40 13.60
ARC Printing COLOR 8.5X11 103.0 Pages @ 0.40 41.20

Total In-House Reimbursables 1.0 times 277.10 277.10

TOTAL THIS TASK: $391.82

$19,591.82Total this Project

$19,591.82Total this Report

Page 7PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT

Project 150421D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services Invoice

01/07/2020 
Page 25 of 118



Environmental Science Associates
Expense Report for Invoice #000000150421 Dated 11/19/2019

Date Person Category Description Amount
10/23/2019 Alverson, Steven Parking/Toll/Cab/Rail (Ferry) $11.41

Business Reason: Uber to Santa Clara Train Station

10/23/2019 Alverson, Steven Parking/Toll/Cab/Rail (Ferry) $9.42

Business Reason: Uber to Santa Clara City Hall

10/23/2019 Alverson, Steven Parking/Toll/Cab/Rail (Ferry) $74.00

Business Reason: Round trip train fare from Sacramento to Santa
Clara to attend the SCSC Roundtable meeting

10/23/2019 Alverson, Steven Parking/Toll/Cab/Rail (Ferry) $12.00

Business Reason: Park at train station in Sacramento to take Amtrak
to the SCSC Roundtable meeting.

10/23/2019 Alverson, Steven Meals (Travel) $5.45

Business Reason: Eat lunch prior to the SCSC Rounstable Meeting.

10/23/2019 Alverson, Steven Mileage (2019 Rate @.580) Travel: 4.20 mi @ 0.580 $2.44

Business Reason: Uber to Santa Clara Train Station Round Trip Travel To/From: Office to Train Station - Round Trip

Total $114.72

Category Summary

Meals (Travel) $5.45

Mileage (2019 Rate @.580) $2.44

Parking/Toll/Cab/Rail (Ferry) $106.83

01/07/2020 
Page 26 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 27 of 118

SAlverson
Typewriter
Cash Tip $1.00
Total       $5.45 

SAlverson
Rectangle



1

Steven Alverson

From: etickets@amtrak.com

Sent: Tuesday, October 22, 2019 5:02 PM

To: Steven Alverson

Subject: Amtrak: eTicket and Receipt for Your 10/23/2019 Trip - STEVEN ALVERSON

Attachments: Alverson Steven 201910222002200332.pdf

SALES RECEIPT 

 
Purchased: 10/22/2019 5:02 PM PTThank you for your purchase. 

1. Retain this receipt for your records. 
2. Print the attached eTicket and carry during your trip. 

Merchant ID 007091 Massachusetts Ave NWWashington, DC 20001800-USA-RAILAmtrak.com 

Reservation Number - 3767ABSACRAMENTO, CA - SANTA 

CLRA-UNIVERSITY, CA (Round-Trip)OCTOBER 22, 2019 

Billing Information 

STEVEN ALVERSON4944 PUMA WAYCARMICHAEL, CA 95608- 

 

Visa ending in 6042 (Purchase)Authorization Code 06582D 
Total $74.00

 

Purchase Summary - Ticket Number 2950709606267 

TRAIN 527: SACRAMENTO, CA - SANTA CLARA (TRANSIT CENTER), CADepart 7:05 

AM, Wednesday, October 23, 2019 
1 UNRESERVED COACH SEAT 

$37.00 

Ticket Terms & ConditionsNOT VALID ON RESERVED COACH TRAINS 
Subtotal 

$37.00 

TRAIN 546: SANTA CLARA (TRANSIT CENTER), CA - SACRAMENTO, CADepart 5:52 

PM, Wednesday, October 23, 2019 
1 UNRESERVED COACH SEAT 

$37.00 

01/07/2020 
Page 28 of 118



2

Ticket Terms & ConditionsNOT VALID ON RESERVED COACH TRAINS 
Subtotal 

$37.00 

Total Charged by Amtrak 

$74.00 

Passengers 

Steven Alverson  

Important Information 

 

 Tickets are non-transferable. 
 Changes to your itinerary may affect your fare.  Refund and exchange restrictions and penalties 

for failure to cancel unwanted travel may apply.  If your travel plans change, contact us before 
departure to change your reservation.  If you do not board your train, your entire reservation 
from that point will be canceled.  If you board a different train without notifying us, you will have 
to pay for it separately; the conductor cannot apply the money paid for your prior 
reservation.  For more information please visit Amtrak.com/changes. 

 Summary of Terms and Conditions:  Ticket valid for carriage or refund (subject to the refund 
rules of the fare purchased) for twelve months after day of issue unless otherwise 
specified.  Amtrak tickets may only be sold or issued by Amtrak or an authorized travel 
agent/tour operator.  Tickets sold or issued by an unauthorized third party will be voided by 
Amtrak.  This ticket is a contract of carriage which includes specific terms and conditions and a 
binding arbitration agreement between Amtrak and the ticket holder.  The terms and conditions 
and arbitration agreement are available at Amtrak.com/terms-and-conditions.html.  Tickets sold 
for non-Amtrak service are subject to the tariffs of the providing carrier. 

 Questions?  Contact us online at Amtrak.com/contact or call 1-800-USA-RAIL (1-800-872-7245) 
or for text telephone (TTY) 1-800-523-6590. 

 

01/07/2020 
Page 29 of 118

SAlverson
Rectangle



1

Steven Alverson

From: Uber Receipts <uber.us@uber.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 23, 2019 11:31 AM

To: Steven Alverson

Subject: Thanks for tipping! We’ve updated your Wednesday morning trip receipt

    

 

 

Total: $9.42 

Wed, Oct 23, 2019 
 

 

  

     

  

  

 

Total  $9.42 
 

    

 

Trip Fare   $5.62 

    

Subtotal  $5.62 

Tolls, Surcharges, and Fees   $2.80 

Tip  $1.00 
 

    

    

Thanks for tipping, 

Steven  

Thanks for tipping! We’ve 

updated your Wednesday 

morning trip receipt  

           

  

     

  

 

01/07/2020 
Page 30 of 118

SAlverson
Rectangle



2

Amount Charged     

 

 

 

•••• 6042  
 

| 
 

Switch
 

$9.42 
 

xid5e5cd805-cb03-4dd6-b8d6-06b1761d8ed8  
pGvlI2ANUbXFfy EOgxta1 RMV082993  

  

       

 

   
  

 

You rode with Manjeet Singh  

 

   

 

   

   

 

 

Has passed Uber Multi-

Step Safety Screen  

4.92 
 

Rating 
 

 

 
Manjeet is known for:  

Excellent Service  
  

     

  

How was your ride?  

Rate Or Tip  

 
  

  

 

Your driver was licensed by None (licence number: None). In the event that you have any issue with 

the service you received, please let us know via the Help option in your app, or via help.uber.com. In 

the event that you have a formal complaint, you should also consider contacting None and, if 

relevant, the police.  
 

   

   

 

When you ride with Uber, your trips are insured in case of a covered accident. 

Learn more. 

   

01/07/2020 
Page 31 of 118



3

 

    

 

  

  UberX   1.41 mi | 4 min 
11:07am  

495 El Camino Real, Santa 

Clara, CA  
 

 

11:11am  

1500 Warburton Ave, Santa 

Clara, CA  
   

 

 

 

     

 

  

  

Invite your friends and family.  

Get $5 off your next ride when you refer a friend 

to try Uber. Share code: a58nn 
 

   

  

  

 

REPORT LOST ITEM ❯   
  

  

CONTACT SUPPORT ❯  
  

  

MY TRIPS ❯  
  

 

 

   

   

 

 

   

01/07/2020 
Page 32 of 118



1

Steven Alverson

From: Uber Receipts <uber.us@uber.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 23, 2019 4:52 PM

To: Steven Alverson

Subject: Thanks for tipping! We’ve updated your Wednesday afternoon trip receipt

    

 

 

Total: $11.41 

Wed, Oct 23, 2019 
 

 

  

     

  

  

 

Total  $11.41 
 

    

 

Trip Fare   $6.30 

    

Subtotal  $6.30 

Wait Time   $1.31 

Tolls, Surcharges, and Fees   $2.80 

Tip  $1.00 
 

    

Thanks for tipping, 

Steven  

Thanks for tipping! We’ve 

updated your Wednesday 

afternoon trip receipt  

           

  

     

  

 

01/07/2020 
Page 33 of 118

SAlverson
Rectangle



2

    

Amount Charged     

 

 

 

•••• 6042  
 

| 
 

Switch
 

$11.41 
 

A temporary hold of $9.10 was placed on your payment method •••• 6042 at the start of the 

trip. This is not a charge and has or will be removed. It should disappear from your bank 

statement shortly. Learn More  
 

xidd3f5ba66-2313-4655-ac2f-518fcc3ace38  

pGvlI2ANUbXFfy EOgxta1 RMV082993  
  

       

 

     

 

You rode with Mbarek Bennar  

 

   

 

   

   

 

 

Has passed Uber Multi-

Step Safety Screen  

4.9 
 

Rating 
 

 

 
Mbarek is known for:  

Excellent Service  
  

     

  

How was your ride?  

Rate Or Tip  

 
  

  

 

Your driver was licensed by None (licence number: None). In the event that you have any issue with 

the service you received, please let us know via the Help option in your app, or via help.uber.com. In 

the event that you have a formal complaint, you should also consider contacting None and, if 

relevant, the police.  
 

   

   

 

When you ride with Uber, your trips are insured in case of a covered accident. 

Learn more. 

   

01/07/2020 
Page 34 of 118



3

 

    

 

  

  UberX   1.31 mi | 5 min 
04:14pm  

1500 Warburton Ave, Santa 

Clara, CA  
 

 

04:19pm  

1005 Railroad Ave, Santa 

Clara, CA  
   

 

 

 

     

 

  

  

Invite your friends and family.  

Get $5 off your next ride when you refer a friend 

to try Uber. Share code: a58nn 
 

   

  

  

 

REPORT LOST ITEM ❯   
  

  

CONTACT SUPPORT ❯  
  

  

MY TRIPS ❯  
  

 

 

   

   

 

 

   

01/07/2020 
Page 35 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 36 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 37 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 38 of 118



01/07/2020 
Page 39 of 118



Environmental Science Associates

(EXU-v.16.002CO)

Unit Detail for Invoice 000000150421 Dated 11/19/2019

Project: D181353.00-CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services

Category Date Description Calculation Amount

Printing 8.5x11 b/w 10/25/2019 ARC Printing BW 8.5X11 2,147.0 Pages @ 0.10 $214.70

Printing 8.5x11 color 10/25/2019 ARC Printing COLOR 8.5X11 103.0 Pages @ 0.40 $41.20

Printing 8.5x11 b/w 10/25/2019 ARC Printing BW 8.5X11 76.0 Pages @ 0.10 $7.60

Printing 8.5x11 color 10/25/2019 ARC Printing COLOR 8.5X11 34.0 Pages @ 0.40 $13.60

Total $277.10

Category Summary

Printing 8.5x11 b/w $222.30

Printing 8.5x11 color $54.80

Total $277.10

01/07/2020 
Page 40 of 118



Project Manager: Steven Alverson

Andi Jordan
Executive Director
Cities Association of Santa Clara County
PO Box 3144

Los Altos, CA  94024

December 18, 2019
Invoice No: 151193

Environmental Science Associates
550 Kearny Street, Suite 800

San Francisco, CA  94108
(415) 896-5900

Project D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services for Santa Clara/Santa Cruz 
Community Roundtable

Professional Services from November 1, 2019 to November 30, 2019
          Task 0000001 Facilitate Regular Roundtable Meetings
          Subtask 0000011 1.1 Prepare For Up To 17 Roundtable Meetings
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Alverson, Steven    4.50 300.00  1,350.00
Senior Associate I

Wasserman, Evan    12.50 150.00  1,875.00
Totals 17.00 3,225.00
Total Labor 3,225.00

        $3,225.00Subtotal this Subtask:

  Subtask 0000013 1.3 Prepare Up To 17 Meeting Recaps and Lists of Action Items/Actions Taken
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Alverson, Steven    10.00 300.00  3,000.00
Senior Associate I

Wasserman, Evan    3.00 150.00  450.00
Totals 13.00 3,450.00
Total Labor 3,450.00

        $3,450.00Subtotal this Subtask:

       $6,675.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000002 Assist CASCC in Improving Roundtable Participation, Meeting Format, and 
Composition

              Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 0.00 2,100.00 2,100.00
Limit 5,100.00
Remaining 3,000.00

0.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000003 Provide Support for Work Not Currently Before the Roundtable
 

PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT

01/07/2020 
Page 41 of 118



Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Alverson, Steven    2.00 300.00  600.00
Totals 2.00 600.00
Total Labor 600.00

            Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 600.00 7,112.50 7,712.50
Limit 50,620.00
Remaining 42,907.50

$600.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000004 Follow Up with FAA and SFO on the Select Committee Recommendations
              Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 0.00 3,205.00 3,205.00
Limit 7,200.00
Remaining 3,995.00

0.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000005 Follow Up with FAA and SJC on the Southflow Recommendations
              Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 0.00 0.00 0.00
Limit 7,200.00
Remaining 7,200.00

0.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000006 Develop an FAA Advocacy Plan
              Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 0.00 0.00 0.00
Limit 21,600.00
Remaining 21,600.00

0.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000007 Prepare and Maintain the Santa Clara/Santa Cruz Community Roundtable Public 
Website

              Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 0.00 4,500.00 4,500.00
Limit 10,820.00
Remaining 6,320.00

0.00TOTAL THIS TASK:

  Task 0000ODC Other Direct Cost
    Reimbursable Expenses

Travel - Transportation 74.00
Travel - Meals 15.53

Total Reimbursables 1.0 times 89.53 89.53

         Billing Limits Current Prior To-Date

Total Billings 89.53 9,976.39 10,065.92
Limit 16,161.70

Page 2PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT

Project 151193D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services Invoice

01/07/2020 
Page 42 of 118



Remaining 6,095.78

$89.53TOTAL THIS TASK:

         $7,364.53TOTAL INVOICE AMOUNT:

Outstanding Invoices

Number Date Balance
150421 11/19/2019 19,591.82
Total 19,591.82

Current Prior Total
Billings to Date 7,364.53 199,646.39 207,010.92

Remit to:

E S A
P.O. Box 92170
Elk Grove, IL  60009

TIN #:  94-1698350

Page 3PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT

Project 151193D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services Invoice

01/07/2020 
Page 43 of 118



2:13:43 PMInvoice 151193 Dated 12/18/2019Environmental Science Associates

Wednesday, December 18, 2019Billing Backup

Project D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services for Santa Clara/Santa Cruz 
Community Roundtable

Task 0000001 Facilitate Regular Roundtable Meetings

Subtask 0000011 1.1 Prepare For Up To 17 Roundtable Meetings

Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Senior Director III
1 - Alverson, Steven 11/1/2019    1.00 300.00  300.00

December RT Meeting Space Logistics
1 - Alverson, Steven 11/4/2019    1.00 300.00  300.00

Prep for December 19th Meeting
1 - Alverson, Steven 11/5/2019    2.00 300.00  600.00

Prep for December 19th Meeting
1 - Alverson, Steven 11/6/2019    .50 300.00  150.00

Prep for December 19th Meeting
Senior Associate I

Senior Associate I
7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/4/2019    2.00 150.00  300.00

2 hrs for drafting action item matrix and communications for next 
meeting/meeting time

7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/5/2019    .50 150.00  75.00
.5 hr for communication regarding next meeting/schedule

7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/6/2019    1.00 150.00  150.00
1 hr for edits to the draft action item matrix and communications for next 
meeting/meeting time

7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/7/2019    .50 150.00  75.00
.5 hr for communication and edits on the RT action matirx

7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/8/2019    .50 150.00  75.00
.5 hr for postign article to website and correspondence tracking

7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/11/2019    2.00 150.00  300.00
2 hrs for posting, communications/correspondence tracking, and edits to 
actions summary table/meeting recap

7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/14/2019    1.00 150.00  150.00
1 hr for correspondence tracking, posting, and edits to meeting recap and 
actions summary table

7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/15/2019    2.00 150.00  300.00
1 hr for posting/communications; 1 hr for correspondence 
tracking/updates

7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/18/2019    1.00 150.00  150.00
1 hr for correspondence tracking and communication regarding upcoming 
meeting agenda

7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/21/2019    1.50 150.00  225.00
1.5 hrs for correspondence tracking

7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/22/2019    .50 150.00  75.00
.5 hr for sending out the ANR and correspondence tracking

Totals 17.00 3,225.00
Total Labor 3,225.00

   $3,225.00Subtotal this Subtask:

Subtask 0000013 1.3 Prepare Up To 17 Meeting Recaps and Lists of Action Items/Actions Taken

Page 4PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT

Project 151193D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services Invoice

01/07/2020 
Page 44 of 118



Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Senior Director III
1 - Alverson, Steven 11/4/2019    2.00 300.00  600.00

October RT Meeting Follow-up
1 - Alverson, Steven 11/6/2019    2.00 300.00  600.00

Review Meeting Recap & Action Matrix
1 - Alverson, Steven 11/8/2019    2.00 300.00  600.00

Review Meeting Recap & Action Matrix
1 - Alverson, Steven 11/8/2019    4.00 300.00  1,200.00

SST Noise Regs Letters to FAA & Congress
Senior Associate I

Senior Associate I
7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/6/2019    2.00 150.00  300.00

2 hrs for communication and edits to Oct meeting recap
7 - Wasserman, Evan 11/7/2019    1.00 150.00  150.00

1 hr for follow up edits to meeting recap to make it shorter
Totals 13.00 3,450.00
Total Labor 3,450.00

   $3,450.00Subtotal this Subtask:

TOTAL THIS TASK: $6,675.00

Task 0000003 Provide Support for Work Not Currently Before the Roundtable

Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Senior Director III

Senior Director III
1 - Alverson, Steven 11/15/2019    2.00 300.00  600.00

Letters to the Congressional Reps & FAA on SST Noise Regs
Totals 2.00 600.00
Total Labor 600.00

   TOTAL THIS TASK: $600.00

Task 0000ODC Other Direct Cost

  Reimbursable Expenses

Travel - Transportation
EX 000000050141 10/23/2019 Wasserman, Evan / Amtrak train to Santa 

Clara for meeting
74.00

Travel - Meals
EX 000000050141 10/23/2019 Wasserman, Evan / Breakfast/Lunch in 

Santa/Clara
15.53

Total Reimbursables 1.0 times 89.53 89.53

 TOTAL THIS TASK: $89.53

$7,364.53Total this Project

$7,364.53Total this Report

Page 5PAYMENT DUE UPON RECEIPT

Project 151193D181353.00 CASCC - Facilitator/Consultant Services Invoice

01/07/2020 
Page 45 of 118



Environmental Science Associates
Expense Report for Invoice #000000151193 Dated 12/18/2019

Date Person Category Description Amount
10/23/2019 Wasserman, Evan Parking/Toll/Cab/Rail (Ferry) $74.00

Business Reason: Amtrak train from Sac to Santa Clar and return

10/23/2019 Wasserman, Evan Meals (Travel) $15.53

Business Reason: Breakfast/Lunch at Cramer's bagel in Santa Clara
before meeting for SCSC Roundtable

Total $89.53

Category Summary

Meals (Travel) $15.53

Parking/Toll/Cab/Rail (Ferry) $74.00

01/07/2020 
Page 46 of 118



eTicket
PRESENT THIS DOCUMENT FOR BOARDING

RESERVATION NUMBER 3718CC
RES# 3718CC-22OCT19

SAC SCC Round-Trip
SACRAMENTO, CA SANTA CLRA-UNIVERSITY, OCTOBER 23, 2019

Depart

TRAIN CAPITOL CORRIDOR SACRAMENTO - SANTA CLARA
(TRANSIT CENTER)

DEPARTS ARRIVES (Wed Oct 23)

527 Oct 23, 2019 7:05 AM 9:51 AM1 Unreserved Coach Seat

Return

TRAIN CAPITOL CORRIDOR SANTA CLARA (TRANSIT CENTER) -
SACRAMENTO

DEPARTS ARRIVES (Wed Oct 23)

546 Oct 23, 2019 5:52 PM 8:50 PM1 Unreserved Coach Seat

WASSERMAN, EVAN ADULT 8468311298 | MEMBER

Proper identification is required for all passengers. This document is valid for only passengers listed. See www.amtrak.com/ID for details.

PASSENGERS (1) AMTRAK GUEST REWARDS

• NOT VALID ON RESERVED COACH TRAINS

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

• At Sacramento Valley Station there is a 1200-foot walk from the station building to the train platforms. Passengers are encouraged to be
ready to proceed from the station to the platform not less than ten minutes prior to train departure time.

• eTickets for Unreserved Coach services are valid within the limits of the city-pair paid for and within one year of purchase, unless otherwise
restricted by any special or promotional fare paid. Seats may not be available and you may have to stand.

• When should you arrive at the station? Check the recommended arrival times for your departure station at Amtrak.com/stations. Allow
additional time if you require ticketing/baggage services or boarding assistance, or if you are boarding at a Canadian station.

• Tickets are non-transferable. They are valid only for the personal use of the passenger(s) named on the ticket.
• For Capitol Corridor travel information please visit capitolcorridor.org, or call 1-877-974-3322 (TDD 1-510-839-2220).
• Your printed eTicket travel document shows the services you booked. If you change your booking but do not reprint the document, it will not

reflect your current itinerary. You may obtain an updated copy of your eTicket at Amtrak.com. At some stations, a gate agent may need to
view your eTicket prior to boarding (learn more at Amtrak.com/boarding).

• Changes to your itinerary may affect your fare. Refund and exchange restrictions and penalties for failure to cancel unwanted travel may
apply. For more information please visit Amtrak.com/changes.

• Carry-on baggage is limited to 2 personal items, 14x11x7" / 25lbs per item, and 2 bags, 28x22x14" / 50lbs per bag, per passenger. You may
be charged a baggage fee or denied boarding if your items exceed these limitations. See the baggage policy at Amtrak.com/baggage.

• Check the departure board or ask a uniformed Amtrak employee to find out where to board your train.
• If You See Something Say Something!  Contact Amtrak Police at 1-800-331-0008 or Text to APD11 (27311).

Page 1 of 1RES# 3718CC     SAC-SCC | Round-Trip     Travel Date: Oct 23, 2019     1-877-974-3322
01/07/2020 

Page 47 of 118

http://www.amtrak.com/stations
http://www.capitolcorridor.org
http://www.amtrak.com/boarding
https://www.amtrak.com/changes
http://www.amtrak.com/baggage
EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight



1

Evan Wasserman

From: Evan Wasserman <ewass17@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 22, 2019 1:08 PM
To: Evan Wasserman
Subject: Fwd: Amtrak: eTicket and Receipt for Your 10/23/2019 Trip - EVAN WASSERMAN
Attachments: Wasserman Evan 201910221525330589.pdf

FYI 

---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From: <etickets@amtrak.com> 
Date: Tue, Oct 22, 2019 at 12:25 PM 
Subject: Amtrak: eTicket and Receipt for Your 10/23/2019 Trip - EVAN WASSERMAN 
To: <EWASS17@gmail.com> 
 

SALES RECEIPT 

 
Purchased: 10/22/2019 12:25 PM PTThank you for your purchase. 

1. Retain this receipt for your records. 
2. Print the attached eTicket and carry during your trip. 

Merchant ID 006001 Massachusetts Ave NWWashington, DC 20001800-USA-RAILAmtrak.com 

Reservation Number - 3718CCSACRAMENTO, CA - SANTA CLRA-UNIVERSITY, CA (Round-
Trip)OCTOBER 22, 2019 
Billing Information 
EVAN WASSERMAN4541 8TH AVESACRAMENTO, CA 95820 

 
Visa ending in 0272 (Purchase)Authorization Code 02369B 
Total $74.00 

 
Purchase Summary - Ticket Number 2950600607653 
TRAIN 527: SACRAMENTO, CA - SANTA CLARA (TRANSIT CENTER), CADepart 7:05 AM, 
Wednesday, October 23, 2019 
1 UNRESERVED COACH SEAT 
$37.00 
Ticket Terms & ConditionsNOT VALID ON RESERVED COACH TRAINS 
Subtotal 
$37.00 
TRAIN 546: SANTA CLARA (TRANSIT CENTER), CA - SACRAMENTO, CADepart 5:52 PM, 
Wednesday, October 23, 2019 
1 UNRESERVED COACH SEAT 
$37.00 
Ticket Terms & ConditionsNOT VALID ON RESERVED COACH TRAINS 
Subtotal 
$37.00 

01/07/2020 
Page 48 of 118

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight



2

Total Charged by Amtrak 
$74.00 
Passengers 
Evan Wasserman 
Important Information 

 

 Tickets are non-transferable. 
 Changes to your itinerary may affect your fare.  Refund and exchange restrictions and penalties for 

failure to cancel unwanted travel may apply.  If your travel plans change, contact us before departure to 
change your reservation.  If you do not board your train, your entire reservation from that point will be 
canceled.  If you board a different train without notifying us, you will have to pay for it separately; the 
conductor cannot apply the money paid for your prior reservation.  For more information please 
visit Amtrak.com/changes. 

 Summary of Terms and Conditions:  Ticket valid for carriage or refund (subject to the refund rules of 
the fare purchased) for twelve months after day of issue unless otherwise specified.  Amtrak tickets 
may only be sold or issued by Amtrak or an authorized travel agent/tour operator.  Tickets sold or 
issued by an unauthorized third party will be voided by Amtrak.  This ticket is a contract of carriage 
which includes specific terms and conditions and a binding arbitration agreement between Amtrak and 
the ticket holder.  The terms and conditions and arbitration agreement are available 
at Amtrak.com/terms-and-conditions.html.  Tickets sold for non-Amtrak service are subject to the 
tariffs of the providing carrier. 

 Questions?  Contact us online at Amtrak.com/contact or call 1-800-USA-RAIL (1-800-872-7245) or 
for text telephone (TTY) 1-800-523-6590. 

 
 
 
--  
Best, 
  
Evan 
ewass17@gmail.com 
 

Evan Wasserman 

Associate - Community Development Group 

ESA | Environmental Science Associates 

EWasserman@esassoc.com | www.esassoc.com 

  

 

01/07/2020 
Page 49 of 118



•- '1''T'^^C R A M E R # SBAGELS
( 408) 246-7580>#C ^ >#< *****

REG 10-23-2019
CRAMER EGGA00 EXTRA
SMK SALMONTAX 1
CHARGE

T 1 $5. 1b
$0. 99
$8. 19
$1.20$13.33

T 1

I

'i

y..<r>

01/07/2020 
Page 50 of 118

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight



11/11/2019 Bank of America | Online Banking | Accounts | Account Details | Account Activity

https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/brain/redirect.go?source=overview&target=acctDetails&adx=c96fb49199dd7188fa31c6872c8c3a9a3c7… 1/2

Current balance: $1,073.24
Total credit available: $2,640.51

Cash credit line available:
$1,530.00

Account Summary

Rewards

Total credit line: $4,500.00
Cash credit line: $1,530.00

Amount over total credit
line: $0.00

Next closing date: 11/15/2019
Last payment date: 11/05/2019
Last payment: $1,534.35

Card Details

Statement balance: $672.60
Payment due date: 11/12/2019

Total minimum payment
due: $0.00

Pay This Card

Go to: Current transactions

Posting Date ↓ Description Amount Balance

Pending BED BATH & BEYOND #409 $116.36 $1,858.49

Pending LOWE'S #2755 $199.63 $1,742.13

Pending MELS DINER $26.07 $1,542.50

Pending SAFEWAY STORE 3013 $36.91 $1,516.43

Pending LOWE'S #2341 $315.59 $1,479.52

Pending CHEVRON 0372786 $56.57 $1,163.93

Pending IN N OUT BURGER 122 $16.89 $1,107.36

Pending LOWE'S #2341 $17.23 $1,090.47

11/09/2019 THAI BASIL RESTAURANT SACRAMENTO CA $16.31 $1,073.24

11/09/2019 OLD SOUL AT THE WEATHERSTSACRAMENTO CA $21.89 $1,056.93

11/08/2019 MOUNTAIN TRIP INTERNATIO 9706391153 CO $58.00 $1,035.04

11/06/2019 UBER JUMP HELP.UBER.COMCA $1.35 $977.04

11/06/2019 SQ *BIG STUMP BREWING COMSacramento CA $16.97 $975.69

11/06/2019 CHA CHA'S DOGGIE DAY SACRAMENTO CA $34.00 $958.72

11/06/2019 APPLE.COM/BILL 866-712-7753 CA $9.99 $924.72

11/05/2019 BA ELECTRONIC PAYMENT -$1,534.35 $914.73

11/04/2019 LOWES #02341* RANCHO CORDOVCA $742.60 $2,449.08

11/04/2019 LOWES #02755* WEST SACRAMENCA $64.76 $1,706.48

11/04/2019 TOWER THEATRE SACRAMENTO CA $21.00 $1,641.72

11/04/2019 UBER JUMP HELP.UBER.COMCA $1.35 $1,620.72

Beginning balance as of 10/16/2019 $672.60

Balance Summary: 11/12/2019

* Available Credit includes purchases that have been authorized but have not yet posted to your account.

Alaska Airlines Visa Platinum Plus - 0272

01/07/2020 
Page 51 of 118

javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/card/account-details.go?&adx=c96fb49199dd7188fa31c6872c8c3a9a3c730c7378d5520df2f2b00ade50d071&stx=3f08d8fadb4b67fb056623565edbbc2c788091d78fd24cbc473fce3043ce3473&sort=0&filter=0&order=0
https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/card/account-details.go?&adx=c96fb49199dd7188fa31c6872c8c3a9a3c730c7378d5520df2f2b00ade50d071&stx=3f08d8fadb4b67fb056623565edbbc2c788091d78fd24cbc473fce3043ce3473&sort=1&filter=0&order=0
https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/card/account-details.go?&adx=c96fb49199dd7188fa31c6872c8c3a9a3c730c7378d5520df2f2b00ade50d071&stx=3f08d8fadb4b67fb056623565edbbc2c788091d78fd24cbc473fce3043ce3473&sort=2&filter=0&order=0
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight



11/11/2019 Bank of America | Online Banking | Accounts | Account Details | Account Activity

https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/brain/redirect.go?source=overview&target=acctDetails&adx=c96fb49199dd7188fa31c6872c8c3a9a3c7… 2/2

Go to: Current transactions

Posting Date ↓ Description Amount Balance

11/04/2019 SAFEWAY #2242 SACRAMENTO CA $6.16 $1,619.37

11/04/2019 SAFEWAY #2242 SACRAMENTO CA $26.08 $1,613.21

11/02/2019 LITTLE CAESARS 0374 0002 SACRAMENTO CA $9.78 $1,587.13

11/01/2019 SHELL OIL 57444722607 SACRAMENTO CA $43.00 $1,577.35

10/31/2019 UBER JUMP HELP.UBER.COMCA $1.62 $1,534.35

10/29/2019 CHA CHA'S DOGGIE DAY SACRAMENTO CA $120.00 $1,532.73

10/28/2019 SACYARD COMMUNITY YARDHOUSACRAMENTO CA $18.00 $1,412.73

10/28/2019 FOLSOM LAKE STATE RECREA FOLSOM CA $125.00 $1,394.73

10/28/2019 RENDEZ-VOUS WINERY 707-287-5483 CA $22.99 $1,269.73

10/28/2019 STOP N SHOP SACRAMENTO CA $44.50 $1,246.74

10/28/2019 SMOG EXPRESS SACRAMENTO CA $58.00 $1,202.24

10/28/2019 SQ *ISLAND TACOS Sacramento CA $13.20 $1,144.24

10/26/2019 BROADWAY SACRAMENTO 916-557-1999 CA $198.00 $1,131.04

10/25/2019 STARBUCKS STORE 05619 SANTA CLARA CA $4.95 $933.04

10/24/2019 AMTRAK .COM 2950600607653WASHINGTON DC $74.00 $928.09

10/24/2019 SQ *CRAMER'S BAGELS Santa Clara CA $15.53 $854.09

10/22/2019 CAPRADIO WWW.CAPRADIO.CA $10.00 $838.56

10/22/2019 CHA CHA'S DOGGIE DAY SACRAMENTO CA $120.00 $828.56

10/21/2019 FOLSOM LAKE STATE RECREA FOLSOM CA $12.00 $708.56

10/19/2019 DRAKES AT THE BARN WEST SACRAMENCA $7.11 $696.56

10/18/2019 PAYPAL *PARKMOBILE 402-935-7733 GA $3.85 $689.45

10/16/2019 TAQUERIA JALISCO SACRAMENTO CA $13.00 $685.60

Beginning balance as of 10/16/2019 $672.60

01/07/2020 
Page 52 of 118

https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/card/account-details.go?&adx=c96fb49199dd7188fa31c6872c8c3a9a3c730c7378d5520df2f2b00ade50d071&stx=3f08d8fadb4b67fb056623565edbbc2c788091d78fd24cbc473fce3043ce3473&sort=0&filter=0&order=0
https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/card/account-details.go?&adx=c96fb49199dd7188fa31c6872c8c3a9a3c730c7378d5520df2f2b00ade50d071&stx=3f08d8fadb4b67fb056623565edbbc2c788091d78fd24cbc473fce3043ce3473&sort=1&filter=0&order=0
https://secure.bankofamerica.com/myaccounts/details/card/account-details.go?&adx=c96fb49199dd7188fa31c6872c8c3a9a3c730c7378d5520df2f2b00ade50d071&stx=3f08d8fadb4b67fb056623565edbbc2c788091d78fd24cbc473fce3043ce3473&sort=2&filter=0&order=0
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight

EWasserman
Highlight



 
 

NAME OF ORGANIZATION: VALLEY WATER (FORMERLY THE SANTA CLARA 
VALLEY WATER DISTRICT) 
 

Name of Contact Person: Domingo Candelas 
Phone: 408-941-5067 (cell) 
Email: dcandelas@valleywater.org 
Presenters: Domingo Candelas (Office of Government Relations) 

 
 
REQUEST (WHAT WILL BE PRESENTED?): 
Implementation of Model Water Efficiency Standards for New Development.  
 
 
 
RELEVANCE TO THE CITIES ASSOCIATION: 
 
Opportunity to hear about climate resilient policies that will have a positive impact on 
water supplies that are now as important as ever before with the need to address the 
housing shortage and the pressure on future water supplies in the region. 
 
 
 
 
WHAT ACTION IS REQUESTED OF THE CITIES ASSOCIATION? 
 
Support for ordinance implementation for new development standards 
 
 
 
 
MATERIALS TO BE SENT TO SUPPORT PRESENTATION: 
 
See attachments 

REQUEST TO PRESENT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Return to executive_director@citiesassociation.org at least 2 
weeks prior to the Board Meeting for consideration.   
 

01/07/2020 
Page 53 of 118



		

	 1	

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Conduct the first reading and authorize the adoption of Ordinance No. XXXX (“Ordinance”), An 
Ordinance of the City Council of the City of [] Adding a New Chapter [] (Water Efficient New 
Development) to Title [] of the City of [] Municipal Code Related to Requirements for New 
Development that Promote Water Use Efficiency and the Development of Alternate Sources of 
Water Supply, establishing rules and regulations to help ensure that new development is poised 
to be water efficient in order to extend the City’s water supplies. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In 2015, the Santa Clara County Water Efficient New Development Task Force (“Task Force”) 
was formed, including representatives from Santa Clara County, several cities (Cupertino, 
Morgan Hill, Mountain View, Palo Alto, and Sunnyvale), Santa Clara Valley Water District, 
Sustainable Silicon Valley, and Joint Venture Silicon Valley. The goal of the Task Force was to 
develop a Model Water Efficient New Development Ordinance to be adopted by jurisdictions in 
Santa Clara County to ensure that new development is poised to be water efficient in order to 
extend the region’s water supplies. The Task Force met for about eighteen (18) months and 
developed the initial draft of a Model Water Efficient New Development Ordinance, conducting 
research on existing ordinances of other jurisdictions containing similar requirements and 
coming to agreement on key content. The Task Force solicited input from a variety of other 
stakeholders, including the Santa Clara Valley Water District Agricultural Water Advisory 
Committee, Santa Clara Valley Water District Environmental and Water Resources Committee, 
Santa Clara Valley Water District Landscape Committee, Santa Clara County/City Managers’ 
Association, water retailers, California Water Commission, Cities Association of Santa Clara 
County, and building officials in Santa Clara County. 
 
In September 2018, Santa Clara Valley Water District, on behalf of the Task Force, procured the 
technical assistance of a qualified sustainability consulting firm to finalize the Model Water 
Efficient New Development Ordinance, with input from Task Force representatives, the 
California Building Standards Commission, and the California Energy Commission. The Model 
Water Efficient New Development Ordinance was finalized and used as a model for this 
Ordinance. 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Climate change and the threat of recurring droughts, population growth, and imported water 
variability will continue to present challenges for water supply reliability in Santa Clara County, 
intensifying the need for locally-sourced and sustainable water supplies. Recycled and purified 
water sources possess these qualities while offering sufficiency of supply and reliability. In 2017, 
recycled water accounted for 5% of Santa Clara County’s total water use, the majority of which 
was used for agriculture, landscaping, and industrial purposes. In partnering with jurisdictions 
and water retailers in Santa Clara County, Santa Clara Valley Water District intends to purpose 
recycled and purified water for the provision of at least 10% of Santa Clara County’s total water 

01/07/2020 
Page 54 of 118



		

	 2	

demand by 2025. The requirements in the Ordinance would supplement existing strategies and 
support ongoing efforts to achieve an environmentally adaptive water supply. 
 
A monthly assessment of water supply and use trends conducted by Santa Clara Valley Water 
District reported that the beginning of 2018 presented “groundwater storage well within Stage 1 
(Normal) of the District’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan.” However, precipitation for the 
beginning of 2018 was 60% of average levels at the San Jose Index Station and significantly 
lower than that of the Santa Cruz Mountains, the Diablo Range and South County, with snow 
water equivalent for the Northern Sierra falling well below normal. Such data suggests a need for 
water supply capable of satisfying demand while withstanding potential future drought 
conditions. 
 
A variety of other jurisdictions have adopted ordinances with similar requirements to this 
Ordinance, including Los Angeles, Menlo Park, and San Francisco. Located in a similarly dry 
climate, the City of Menlo Park proposed that the green and sustainable building requirements 
incorporate water efficiency and recycled water measures in preparation for anticipated water 
supply shortfalls. City of Menlo Park adopted guidelines in March 2018 for water use budgets 
for new developments in the office, life sciences, and residential mixed-use zoning districts. City 
and County of San Francisco adopted an ordinance and implemented a program regulating onsite 
treated alternate water source systems. These initiatives are derived from the urgency of expected 
shortfalls during drought years, and they strive to ensure that buildings are both water efficient 
and resilient to protect the public from the impacts of such shortfalls. 
 
In consideration of the dry climate that characterizes Santa Clara County paired with the 
expected impacts of climate change and population growth, efficient water resource management 
will become a matter of increasing importance. Specifically, waste and unnecessary use of 
potable water threatens the limited supply available for consumption and creates the need for 
water recycling and conservation measures. Buildings account for a significant portion of potable 
water use, and new development adds to existing potable water demands. Improving water 
efficiency and encouraging nonpotable water use for nonpotable applications, implemented at the 
design and construction phase of new developments, can help minimize the strain such 
developments place on potable water supplies for the life of the buildings. Reduced water use 
achieved through efficiency measures concurrently delivers a variety of associated 
environmental benefits including reduced energy use, reduced greenhouse gas emissions, water 
quality protection, and improved stream flows. Creating the framework within which onsite 
treated alternate water source systems can be installed will additionally assist in extending 
potable water supplies. The risk-based water quality standards that will be applied to onsite 
treated alternate water source systems will protect public health, safety and welfare. 
 
POLICY ISSUES: 
 
The Ordinance is subject to the requirements of California Senate Bill No. 966 (“SB 966”) and 
the associated updates to Article 8 (commencing with Section 13558) of Chapter 7 of Division 7 
of the Water Code related to local jurisdictions that elect to establish a program for onsite treated 
nonpotable water systems that includes the risk-based water quality standards established by the 

01/07/2020 
Page 55 of 118



		

	 3	

California State Water Resources Control board. The text of the Ordinance is in full compliance 
with SB 966.  
 
Beyond the text of the Ordinance, SB 966 requires that “a local jurisdiction that does not provide 
water service or sewer service shall consult with a water service provider or sewer service 
provider, respectively, that provides water service or sewer service within the boundaries of the 
jurisdiction before adopting, amending, or repealing an ordinance that institutes a program for 
onsite treated nonpotable water system installation and regulation. In consulting with a water 
service provider or sewer service provider, a local jurisdiction shall give the water service 
provider or sewer service provider the opportunity to demonstrate that the proposed ordinance 
could result in a significant adverse impact” to receiving waters or to the existing sewer 
collection or treatment system or existing or planned centralized recycled water or potable reuse 
facilities or projects due to reduced flows. The City has consulted with [Agency Name(s) or 
internal department name(s)] in compliance with this requirement, and [no such significant 
adverse impacts were identified OR any such significant impacts identified were addressed in 
order to avoid or mitigate the impacts to the point where they are no longer significant].  
 
Ongoing compliance with SB 966 will require the City to provide an annual report to the 
California State Water Resources Control Board that includes the number, location, and 
description of permits issued for new and replacement onsite treated nonpotable water systems, 
the types and quantity of nonpotable water for nonpotable end uses, water quality monitoring 
data, and a summary of any violations and corrective actions taken in the local jurisdiction’s 
program. 
 
Requirements in the Single-Family Residential Water Waste Reduction when Heating Water 
section of the Ordinance make more restrictive amendments to certain provisions of Title 24 of 
the California Code of Regulations (“California Building Standards Code”). More specifically, 
these amendments are to certain provisions of Part 6 of Title 24 of the California Code of 
Regulations (“California Building Energy Efficiency Standards”). Section 1.1.8 of Part 2 of Title 
24 of the California Code of Regulations and Sections 17958 and 18941.5 of the California 
Health and Safety Code provide that any city, county, or city and county may make more 
restrictive amendments to the provisions of the California Building Standards Code. Section 
25402.1(h)2 of the California Public Resources Code and Section 10-106 of Part 6 of Title 24 of 
the California Code of Regulations provide that local government agencies may adopt and 
enforce energy standards for newly constructed buildings, additions, alterations, and repairs to 
existing buildings, provided the standards are cost-effective and will require the buildings to be 
designed to consume no more energy than permitted by the Building Energy Efficiency 
Standards. Local amendments to the California Building Standards Code are subject to certain 
requirements governed by the California Building Standards Commission (“CBSC”), and local 
amendments to the California Building Energy Efficiency Standards are subject to certain 
requirements governed by the California Energy Commission (“CEC”).1,2 Key elements of these 
requirements are discussed below. 
 

	
1	http://www.bsc.ca.gov/Rulemaking/LocalCodeOrdinances.aspx	
2	https://www.energy.ca.gov/title24/2016standards/ordinances/	

01/07/2020 
Page 56 of 118



		

	 4	

Sections 17958.5 and 17958.7 of the California Health and Safety Code require that for each 
proposed local amendment to the provisions of the California Building Standards Code, the local 
governing body must make an express finding supporting its determination that each such local 
amendment is reasonably necessary because of local climatic, geological, or topographical 
conditions. Section 101.7.1 of Part 11 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, known 
as the California Green Building Standards Code, provides that local climatic, geological, or 
topographical conditions include environmental conditions established by the city, county, or 
city and county. Pursuant to Sections 17958.5 and 17958.7 of the California Health and Safety 
Code, the provisions of the California Building Standards Code in Title 24 of the California 
Code of Regulations being amended and the respective express findings applicable to each 
amendment are summarized in and attached to the Ordinance as Exhibit A (Express Findings for 
Local Amendments of Building Standards). 
 
Local amendments to the California Building Standards Code are not effective until copies of the 
amendment documents meeting all document filing requirements have been filed with the CBSC. 
Additionally, the CEC review and approval process involves posting an adopted ordinance for 
public comment for sixty (60) days followed by approval at a CEC Business Meeting. After 
adoption of the Ordinance, the City will file the required amendment documents and follow the 
required approval processes with the CBSC and CEC in accordance with each agency’s 
respective requirements. A separate filing instructions document is available from Valley Water. 
 
The model water efficiency ordinance and accompanying cost-effectiveness analysis upon which 
this Ordinance is based and to which this Ordinance is substantially similar were developed with 
informal input from staff of both the CBSC and the CEC in anticipation of each agency’s 
respective requirements and in order to preemptively identify any potential barriers to approval, 
of which none were identified. The cost-effectiveness report, attached hereto as Attachment A, 
was updated to demonstrate compliance with the 2019 California Building Standards Code and 
found that the energy standards in the model water efficiency ordinance relevant to the CBSC 
and the CEC are cost-effective and require buildings to be designed to consume no more energy 
than permitted by Part 6 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, and the Ordinance 
includes the required language stating this finding. 
 
The triennial code adoption cycle of the California Building Standards Code impacts the timing 
of the Ordinance with regard to adoption, implementation, effective date, and updating. The 
2016 California Building Standards Code is effective until January 1, 2020. The 2019 California 
Building Standards Code has been developed, adopted, and published, and it becomes effective 
on January 1, 2020. Section 1.1.8 of Part 2 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations and 
Sections 17958 and 18941.5 of the California Health and Safety Cody specify that local 
amendments to the California Building Standards Code shall not be effective any sooner than the 
effective date of the California Building Standards Code being amended. This Ordinance amends 
the 2019 California Building Standards Code, and as such, it cannot have an effective date earlier 
than January 1, 2020. 
 
The Ordinance is generally complementary and non-overlapping with the California Model 
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (“MWELO”), however the Ordinance includes certain 
requirements related to water efficient landscapes that are more stringent than MWELO, 

01/07/2020 
Page 57 of 118



		

	 5	

including requirements related to water meters for landscape irrigation, irrigation nozzle 
precipitation rate, and swimming pool and spa covers. 
 
The Ordinance supports one of the purposes of the Santa Clara Valley Water District stated in 
the Santa Clara Valley Water District Act, which is “to do any and every lawful act necessary to 
be done that sufficient water may be available for any present or future beneficial use or uses of 
the lands or inhabitants within the District.” The Ordinance also supports the Santa Clara Valley 
Water District Board Policy stating that “there is a reliable, clean water supply for current and 
future generations.” The Ordinance supports the strategy element of increasing water recycling 
and conservation to meet future increases in demand as stated in the Ensure Sustainability water 
supply strategy of Santa Clara Valley Water District’s 2012 Water Supply and Infrastructure 
Master Plan. 
 
COSTS AND BENEFITS: 
 
Implementation of this Ordinance will require staff time to complete both initial and ongoing 
relevant tasks. Initial tasks include: 

1. Within ninety (90) days of adoption of the Ordinance, the Director or his or her designee 
shall establish a program for Onsite Treated Nonpotable Water systems including rules 
and regulations regarding the operation of Alternate Water Source Systems necessary to 
effectuate the purposes of this Ordinance and to protect public health and safety. This 
program shall include, among other elements, a Water Budget Calculator to provide to 
project applicants. 

2. The Director of Public Works or his or her designee shall adopt regulations consistent 
with, and in furtherance of, this Ordinance. 

3. Relevant City staff shall file the required amendment documents and follow the required 
approval processes with the CBSC and the CEC in accordance with each agency’s 
respective requirements for local amendments of building standards. 

4. Relevant City staff shall conduct initial review of this Ordinance and its requirements in 
order to understand and undertake the relevant implementation tasks, program 
development, new development project permitting, and site plan review processes. 

5. While not strictly required, it would be considered best practice for City staff to develop 
resources for new development project applicants in order to communicate the 
requirements of and facilitate compliance with the Ordinance. In addition to general 
direction on how to achieve compliance, specific resources for new development project 
applicants and future occupants could include suggestions for labeling demand hot water 
recirculation system manual controls and guidance for occupants on how to use the 
manual controls to operate such systems. 

 
In addition to the aforementioned initial tasks, implementation of this Ordinance will require 
staff time on an ongoing basis, including in the following areas: 

1. Review during the new development project permitting and site plan review processes for 
compliance with the requirements of this Ordinance by Building Department staff; 

2. Review by the Director or his or her designee of written requests for exemption from 
certain requirements of this Ordinance; 

01/07/2020 
Page 58 of 118



		

	 6	

3. Review by the Director or his or her designee of applications for Alternate Water Source 
Systems, including submitted Water Budget Documentation and Nonpotable Water 
Engineering Reports; 

4. Issuance or denial of all relevant permits (operations, building, plumbing, encroachment, 
etc.) for the construction, installation, and/or modification of Alternate Water Source 
Systems by the relevant City departments; 

5. Review and verification by the Director of submitted Construction Certificate Letters for 
Alternate Water Source Systems; 

6. Inspection by the Director or his or her designee of any Alternate Water Source Systems 
as needed and appropriate to determine compliance; 

7. The administration of irrigation audits of newly constructed landscape areas by the local 
agency; 

8. Enforcement of relevant administrative penalties and/or pursuit of any legal remedies for 
violations of provisions, rules, or regulations of the Ordinance; 

9. Annual reporting by the Director or his or her designee to the California State Water 
Resources Control Board that includes the number, location, and description of permits 
issued for new and replacement onsite treated nonpotable water systems, the types and 
quantity of nonpotable water for nonpotable end uses, water quality monitoring data, and 
a summary of any violations and corrective actions taken in the local jurisdiction’s 
program; 

10. Annual reporting by the Director to the Controller of the revenues generated by the non-
refundable permit application fees for the prior fiscal year and the prior fiscal year’s costs 
of operation; 

11. Annual review by the Controller of the revenues generated by the non-refundable permit 
application fees for the prior fiscal year and the prior fiscal year’s costs of operation and 
annual adjustment by the Controller of such fees to ensure they will not produce revenue 
that exceeds the reasonable costs of providing the services for which the fees are 
assessed; and 

12. Adopting ordinances to update the relevant municipal code language as needed to address 
updates to referenced code (such as the triennial code adoption cycle for updates to the 
California Building Standards Code) and to make other changes as appropriate. 

 
This Ordinance provides for the City to receive an appropriate amount of revenue to recover the 
costs of operation of this Ordinance through the non-refundable permit application fees as 
authorized by this Ordinance and as reviewed and, if necessary, adjusted, by the Controller on an 
annual basis. This Ordinance specifies that the fees shall be set such that they will not produce 
revenue that exceeds the reasonable costs of providing the services for which the fees are 
assessed, thus they are not considered a tax subject to voter approval under Proposition 26. 
 
In the provisions of this Ordinance for which related provisions of the Building Energy 
Efficiency Standards include an option for HERS verification, the HERS-Verified option has 
been required. This should help reduce the need for field inspections and administrative burden 
on jurisdiction staff when reviewing project applications for compliance. 
 
Adoption of this Ordinance and the associated rules and regulations will help deliver a variety of 
benefits to the City, including: 

01/07/2020 
Page 59 of 118



		

	 7	

1. Helping the City manage its water resources as efficiently as possible to extend the City’s 
water supplies in the face of growing population, climate change, potential future drought 
conditions, and the need to protect and grow the City’s economy; 

2. Providing reduced water use and the associated energy use reductions and environmental 
benefits including protecting water quality, preserving and improving stream flows, and 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions; 

3. Assisting in meeting future water requirements of the City and addressing the impacts of 
new development on the City’s sanitary sewer system; 

4. Protecting public health, safety, and welfare through the application of risk-based water 
quality standards for onsite treated alternate water source systems; and 

5. Helping the City achieve its goals for water supply use and preservation by: 
a. Promoting the values and benefits of nonpotable water use while recognizing the 

need to invest water and other resources as efficiently as possible; 
b. Encouraging the use of nonpotable water for nonpotable applications; and 
c. Replacing potable water use for irrigation with alternate water sources to the 

maximum extent possible. 
 
In addition, the cost effectiveness analysis conducted on the measures in the model water 
efficiency ordinance upon which this Ordinance is based and to which this Ordinance is 
substantially similar, is attached hereto as Attachment A. 
 
CONCLUSION AND NEXT STEPS: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council conduct a first reading and authorize the adoption of 
Ordinance No. XXXX, An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of [] Adding a New 
Chapter [] (Water Efficient New Development) to Title [] of the City of [] Municipal Code 
Related to Requirements for New Development that Promote Water Use Efficiency and the 
Development of Alternate Sources of Water Supply. Should the City Council adopt the 
Ordinance, within ninety (90) days, the Director shall establish a program for Onsite Treated 
Nonpotable Water systems including rules and regulations regarding the operation of Alternate 
Water Source Systems necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Ordinance and to protect 
public health and safety. Relevant City staff should review the Ordinance and its requirements to 
understand and undertake the relevant implementation tasks, program development, new 
development project permitting, site plan review processes, and the development of resources to 
communicate the requirements with new development project applicants and facilitate 
compliance. 
 
Prepared by:  Name, Title 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Attachment # Page # Title 

Attachment A 8 Energy and Water Efficiency Cost-Effectiveness Study for 
Residential and Nonresidential New Construction 

 

01/07/2020 
Page 60 of 118



1  

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF [] ADDING A NEW 
CHAPTER [] (WATER EFFICIENT NEW DEVELOPMENT) TO TITLE [] OF THE CITY OF 
[] MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT 

PROMOTE WATER USE EFFICIENCY AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF ALTERNATE 
SOURCES OF WATER SUPPLY 

 

WHEREAS, all California water users are responsible for making effective use of the 
available water resources; and 

WHEREAS, water is a public resource that the California Constitution protects against 
waste and unreasonable use; and 

WHEREAS, growing population, climate change, and the need to protect and grow the 
City’s economy make it essential that the City manage its water resources as efficiently as possible; 
and 

WHEREAS, reduced water use through conservation provides significant energy reduction 
and associated environmental benefits, and can help protect water quality, preserve and improve 
stream flows, and reduce greenhouse gas emissions; and 

WHEREAS, improvements in technology and management practices offer the potential for 
increasing water efficiency in California over time, providing an essential water management tool 
to meet the need for water for urban, agricultural, and environmental uses; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the energy standards in this ordinance are cost-
effective and require buildings to be designed to consume no more energy than permitted by Part 6 
of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the development of Alternate Water Source Systems will assist in meeting 
future water requirements of the City and lessen the impacts of new development on the City's 
sanitary sewer system; and 

WHEREAS, the application of risk-based water quality standards to Onsite Treated 
Nonpotable Water systems can protect public health, safety, and welfare; and 

WHEREAS, adoption of this ordinance and related rules and regulations by the City will 
help achieve the City's goals for water supply use and preservation by: 

(1) Promoting the values and benefits of Nonpotable Water use while recognizing the need 
to invest water and other resources as efficiently as possible; 

(2) Encouraging the use of Nonpotable Water for nonpotable applications; and 

01/07/2020 
Page 61 of 118



2  

(3) Replacing potable water with Alternate Water Sources for toilet and urinal flushing and 
irrigation to the maximum extent possible; and 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council of the City of [] to require New 
Development constructed in the City of [] to meet and exceed the water efficiency and alternate 
sources of water supply requirements of the State of California. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF [] DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. CEQA REVIEW. 

The City Council finds, pursuant to [Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 
15061(b)(3),] that this Ordinance is [exempt] from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) in that it [is not a “project” which has the potential for causing a significant effect on the 
environment]. 

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS. 

The terms used in this Chapter have the meaning set forth below: 

Alternate Water Source: A source of Nonpotable Water that includes Recycled Water, Graywater, 
Stormwater, condensate, onsite treated Nonpotable Water, Rainwater, Blackwater, and any other 
source approved by the Director. 

Alternate Water Source System: The system of facilities necessary for providing Nonpotable Water 
for use in a development project, including but not limited to all collection, treatment, storage, and 
distribution facilities. Nonpotable Water System shall have the same meaning. 

Blackwater: Wastewater containing bodily or other biological wastes. This is discharge from 
toilets, dishwashers, kitchen sinks, and utility sinks. 

Building Energy Efficiency Standards: Those regulations contained in Title 24, Part 6 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

Compact Hot Water Distribution System: A hot water distribution system in which the water heater 
to fixture proximity is more compact than threshold criteria that is defined based on the dwelling 
unit conditioned floor area and number of stories, as described in Part 6 of Title 24 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

Director: The Director of []  or any individual designated by the Director to act on his or her behalf. 

District: A group of two or more parcels that share Alternate Water Sources. 

District System: An Alternate Water Source System serving a District development project. 

Drain Water Heat Recovery (DWHR): A double wall heat exchanger that recovers heat from the 
effluent waste piping and uses it to preheat water in a domestic or service water-heating system in 
order to reduce water heating energy usage. 

01/07/2020 
Page 62 of 118



3  

Equal Flow Configuration: Installation of a drain water heat recovery device with preheated water 
being routed to both the water heater and the shower, as opposed to an unequal flow configuration 
with preheated water being routed to either the water heater or the shower. 

First Certificate of Occupancy: Either a temporary certificate of occupancy or a Certificate of Final 
Completion and Occupancy. 

Foundation Drainage: Nuisance groundwater that is extracted to maintain a building’s or facility’s 
structural integrity and would otherwise be discharged to the City’s sewer system. Foundation 
Drainage does not include Nonpotable groundwater extracted for a beneficial use that is subject to 
City groundwater well regulations. 

Graywater: Untreated wastewater that has not been contaminated by any toilet discharge, has not 
been affected by infectious, contaminated, or unhealthy bodily wastes, and does not present a threat 
from contamination by unhealthful processing, manufacturing, or operating wastes. Graywater 
includes, but is not limited to, wastewater from bathtubs, showers, bathroom sinks, lavatories, 
clothes washing machines, and laundry tubs, but does not include wastewater from kitchen sinks or 
dishwashers. Graywater does not include Blackwater. 

Graywater Ready: A design criteria for a structure’s plumbing system that provides a noninvasive 
pathway to install a graywater treatment and reuse system at a later date. In a Graywater Ready 
home, for example, it will be possible to install an NSF 350 System without altering the in-wall or 
in-ground plumbing and electrical infrastructure. 

Hot Water Recirculation System: A Hot Water System that uses the hot water return line and/or 
supply line connected to a water heater to enable continuous delivery of hot water to fixtures. 

Hot Water System: A system that distributes hot water, consisting of a water heater, piping, and 
related equipment and devices. 

Multi-family Residential: A residential building that contains three or more dwelling units. 

New Development: Buildings and structures that have not received initial design approval from the 
Planning Department or a building permit from the Building Department prior to January 1, 2020. 

Nonpotable Water: Water collected from Alternate Water Sources, treated, and intended to be used 
onsite for direct beneficial use. 

Nonpotable Water Engineering Report: Report submitted by project applicant to the Director 
describing the Alternate Water Source System in accordance with the rules and regulations adopted 
by the City. 

Nonpotable Water System: The same meaning as Alternate Water Source System. 

Nonresidential: A building that contains occupancies other than dwelling units. For the purposes of 
this ordinance, hotels, motels, institutional housing (such as hostels and dormitories), hospitals, and 
night shelters are considered nonresidential. 

NSF 350 System: Any treatment system certified to meet NSF/ANSI Standard 350 for Onsite 

01/07/2020 
Page 63 of 118



4  

Residential and Commercial Reuse Treatment Systems, as amended from time to time. 

Open Cooling Tower: An open, or direct contact, cooling tower which exposes water directly to the 
cooling atmosphere, thereby transferring the source heat load from the water directly to the air by a 
combination of heat and mass transfer. 

Onsite Treated Nonpotable Water: Nonpotable Water that has been collected, treated, and intended 
to be used onsite and is suitable for direct beneficial use.  

Onsite Treated Nonpotable Water Program: Program established by the Director for Onsite Treated 
Nonpotable Water systems including rules and regulations regarding the operation of Alternate 
Water Source Systems necessary to effectuate the purposes of this ordinance and to protect public 
health and safety. 

Permittee: Owner or operator of an Onsite Treated Nonpotable Water system. 

Rainwater: Precipitation collected from roof surfaces or other manmade, aboveground collection 
surfaces. 

Recycled Water: Water that has been reclaimed from wastewater for beneficial use as defined by 
Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations. 

Residential: A building that contains residential dwelling units including single-family or multi-
family housing units and mobile homes. 

Single-family Residential: A residential building that contains one or two dwelling units. 

Stormwater: Precipitation collected from at-grade or below grade surfaces.  

Water Budget: The calculation of the potential volume of onsite Alternate Water Sources and 
demands of a development project and any other building subject to this ordinance. 

Water Budget Calculator: The water use calculation application approved by the Director that 
provides for the assessment of a proposed onsite water system, Alternate Water Sources, and the 
end uses of the Alternate Water Sources. 

Water Budget Documentation: An in-depth assessment of the project applicant’s Nonpotable Water 
use, including survey information, water meter readings, water service billing information, 
Alternate Water Source schematic drawings, or any other information deemed necessary by the 
Director.  

SECTION 3. The City Council hereby adds a new Chapter [] (Water Efficient New Development) 
to Title [] of the City of [] Municipal Code to read as follows: 

{CODE SECTION} 1. APPLICABILITY. 

A. This chapter shall apply to all New Development in the City of []. 

01/07/2020 
Page 64 of 118



5  

B. Exception. The Director may exempt a covered New Development project from some or all 
provisions of this chapter upon determination that sufficient practical challenges exist making 
compliance with the provisions infeasible. The project applicant is responsible for 
demonstrating infeasibility of compliance with the provisions when applying for exemption. 

{CODE SECTION} 2. REQUIREMENTS. 

{CODE SECTION} 2.1. REQUIREMENTS FOR SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
BUILDINGS. 

A. Single-Family Residential Water Waste Reduction when Heating Water. Section 110.3(c) 
of the California Code of Regulations Title 24, Part 6 (“Building Energy Efficiency 
Standards”), related to mandatory requirements for service water-heating systems and 
equipment, is hereby amended to add the following Section 110.3(c)7: 

7. Single-Family Residential New Development. Single-family Residential New 
Development must meet either A or B: 

A. Compact Hot Water Distribution System. Meet the criteria of the Building Energy 
Efficiency Standards related to the HERS-Verified Compact Hot Water Distribution 
System Expanded Credit as specified in the Reference Appendix RA4.4.16. If a Single-
family Residential New Development is using the prescriptive compliance approach to 
demonstrate compliance with the Building Energy Efficiency Standards, such compact 
hot water distribution system may also be used to satisfy the requirement options related 
to compact hot water distribution systems as specified in Section 150.1(c)8. 

B. Hot Water System Volume Limit. The hot water system shall not allow more than 
0.125 gallons of water to be delivered to any fixture before hot water arrives. If a hot 
water recirculation system or electric trace heating system is used to comply with 
Section 110.3(c)7B, the branch from the recirculating loop or electric trace heating 
element to the fixture shall contain a maximum of 0.125 gallons. For reference, this 
volume limitation equates to branch runs no longer than approximately 22’ of 3/8” 
nominal pipe size, 12’ of 1/2" nominal pipe size, or 5.5’ of 3/4” nominal pipe size. 

i. Demand Hot Water Recirculation System with Manual Control. Hot water 
recirculation systems used to comply with Section 110.3(c)7B shall not be 
controlled solely by timers and shall only be demand systems with manual 
control, in compliance with the Building Energy Efficiency Standards 
requirements related to HERS-Verified Demand Recirculation with Manual 
Control as specified in the Reference Appendix RA4.4.17, RA3.6.6, and 
RA4.4.9. and as required by the prescriptive compliance approach as specified 
in Section 150.1(c)8. 

ii. Drain Water Heat Recovery System. Hot water systems pursuing compliance 
under Section 110.3(c)7B using a demand hot water recirculation system with 
manual control shall also include a drain water heat recovery system on the 
master bathroom shower, installed in an Equal Flow Configuration and in 
compliance with the Building Energy Efficiency Standards requirements related 

01/07/2020 
Page 65 of 118



6  

to HERS-Verified Drain Water Heat Recovery System as specified in the 
Reference Appendix RA4.4.21. If a Single-family Residential New 
Development is using the prescriptive compliance approach to demonstrate 
compliance with the Building Energy Efficiency Standards, such drain water 
heat recovery system may also be used to satisfy the requirement options related 
to drain water heat recovery systems as specified in Section 150.1(c)8. 

EXCEPTION to Section 110.3(c)7: Stand-alone tubs. 

B. Single-Family Residential Graywater Ready Collection and Distribution System. All new 
Single-family Residential units shall be built Graywater Ready in compliance with Chapter 15 of 
the California Plumbing Code. The components of a Graywater system shall be labeled in 
compliance with Chapter 6, Section 601.3, of the California Plumbing Code.  

1. Applicability. This Section 2.1.B shall apply to the installation of Graywater Collection 
and Distribution Systems at new Single-family Residential units. 

2. Development Project Requirements. Graywater Ready Single-family Residential units 
must include the following: 

(a) Dedicated Graywater collection plumbing, which must: 

i. Capture water from a sufficient number of fixtures to meet the landscape water 
demand of the Single-family Residential unit, specifically, water from showers, 
baths, lavatory sinks, and laundry washing machines. The landscape water 
demand shall be calculated in accordance with Model Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance as adopted in [municipal code section]; 

ii. Convene each source in the location on the property designated to accommodate 
future non-invasive installation of a treatment system; and 

iii. Reconverge with the home’s Blackwater collection system prior to flowing to 
the municipal sewer system. 

(b) Dedicated locations on the property to accommodate future non-invasive installation of: 

i. A complete Graywater treatment system;  

ii. A storage tank for treated Graywater with a capacity of at least 175 gallons; and 

iii. A surge tank with overflow protection to hold Graywater for no longer than 24 
hours while Graywater is draining by gravity or by pump into the landscape. 

(c) Dedicated distribution plumbing for treated Graywater, so that potable water can be 
disconnected in the future when appropriately treated Graywater is available, which 
must include: 

01/07/2020 
Page 66 of 118



7  

i. Dedicated supply feeds capable of providing treated Graywater to each 
landscape irrigation system on the property (for example, front yard and back 
yard). 

(d) Other requirements for the Single-family Residential unit to be Graywater Ready, 
including: 

i. A hose bib with potable water within 15 feet of each point where the Graywater 
system exits the envelope of the home; and 

ii. A dedicated 20-amp, 120-volt electrical circuit with GFCI breaker within 5 feet 
of each point where the Graywater system exits the envelope of the home. 

3. Exceptions. 

(a) Additions and alterations of existing buildings that use the existing building drain(s) are 
exempted from this Section 2.1.B. 

(b) Sites with irrigated landscape area not exceeding 500 square feet are exempted from this 
Section 2.1.B. 

C. Single-Family Residential Onsite Treated Nonpotable Water Systems. 

1. Applicability. This Section 2.1.C shall apply to the voluntary installation and operation of 
Alternate Water Source Systems at Single-family Residential units. This section shall not 
apply to Graywater systems where Graywater is collected solely for subsurface irrigation 
and does not require treatment and that are regulated by Chapter 15 (commencing with 
Section 1501.0) of the California Plumbing Code (Part 5 of Title 24 of the California Code 
of Regulations), as determined by the Director, or Rainwater systems where Rainwater is 
collected solely for subsurface irrigation, drip irrigation, or non-sprinkled surface 
applications and does not require treatment and that are regulated by Chapter 16 
(commencing with Section 1601.0) of the California Plumbing Code (Part 5 of Title 24 of 
the California Code of Regulations), as determined by the Director. 

2. Regulation of Alternate Water Sources. 

(a) Any person or entity who installs and operates an Alternate Water Source System shall 
comply with this ordinance, the rules and regulations adopted by the California 
Department of Public Health, and all applicable local, state, and federal laws. Alternate 
Water Source Systems shall be designed and built in compliance with Title 17 and Title 
22 of the California Code of Regulations, Chapter 15 of the California Plumbing Code 
and labeled in compliance with Chapter 6, Section 601.3, of the California Plumbing 
Code. 

(b) Onsite Treated Nonpotable Water Program. Within ninety (90) days after passage of 
this ordinance, the Director shall establish a program for Onsite Treated Nonpotable 
Water systems including rules and regulations regarding the operation of Alternate 
Water Source Systems necessary to effectuate the purposes of this ordinance and to 

01/07/2020 
Page 67 of 118



8  

protect public health and safety. This Onsite Treated Nonpotable Water Program shall 
include the risk-based water quality standards established by the California State Water 
Resources Control Board and shall address, at a minimum: 

i. Water quality criteria, including risk-based log reduction targets for the removal 
of pathogens such as enteric viruses, parasitic protozoa, and enteric bacteria for 
Nonpotable Water sources, Graywater, Rainwater, Stormwater, and Blackwater, 
and nonpotable end uses, toilet and urinal flushing, clothes washing, irrigation, 
and dust suppression; 

ii. Water quality monitoring requirements, including content and frequencies; 

iii. Reporting requirements for the water quality monitoring results, including 
content and frequencies; 

iv. Notification and public information requirements; 

v. Cross-connection controls; and 

vi. Operation and maintenance requirements. 

(c) The Director shall review applications for Alternate Water Source Systems and may 
issue or deny such applications, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 

(d) The relevant City departments shall review plans and issue or deny permits for the 
construction, installation, or modification of Alternate Water Source Systems, in 
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 

3. Project Applicant and/or Permittee Design and Construction Requirements. 

(a) Prior to initiating installation of any Alternate Water Source project, project applicants 
shall submit to the Director an application for permits to operate Alternate Water Source 
Systems. Such applications shall comply with the requirements of this ordinance and 
any regulations the Director has issued. Project applicants shall pay a non-refundable 
permit application fee to cover the costs of investigation and processing the application 
and issuing the permit. Each project application submitted to the Director shall include a 
Nonpotable Water Engineering Report that provides project information determined by 
the Director to be necessary for complete review of the proposed project. City 
departments may not approve or issue permits for any site installing an Alternate Water 
Source System unless and until the Director has approved the Nonpotable Water 
Engineering Report. 

(b) System Design. All buildings using Nonpotable Water from Alternate Water Source 
Systems shall include: 

i. A flow meter on the nonpotable distribution system to account for Nonpotable 
Water use; 

01/07/2020 
Page 68 of 118



9  

ii. A reduced pressure backflow assembly (RP) within twenty-five (25) feet of the 
downstream side of the point of connection or meter to protect the City’s public 
water and/or Recycled Water system; 

iii. Signage that state law and the Department of Public Health’s rules and 
regulations require; 

iv. Cross connection control in accordance with Titles 17 and 22 of the California 
Code of Regulations; 

v. Any other requirements the Director determines are necessary to protect public 
health. 

(c) Plumbing Permit. A project applicant shall obtain from the Department of Building 
Inspection an appropriate plumbing permit and any other building or installation permit 
required to construct, install, and/or alter an Alternate Water Source System. 

(d) Encroachment Permit. A project applicant shall obtain from the Department of Public 
Works appropriate authorization for placement of any pipelines or other portions of an 
Alternate Water Source System within the public right-of-way. 

(e) Construction Certification Letter. Project applicants shall certify to the Director that 
Alternate Water Source System construction is complete and consistent with the 
approved Nonpotable Water Engineering Report in accordance with the provisions of 
this ordinance and any implementing rules and regulations. City departments may not 
approve or issue a First Certificate of Occupancy or approval for any Alternate Water 
Source System until the Director has reviewed and verified the Construction Certificate 
Letter. 

4. Fees. 

(a) The non-refundable application fees for Alternate Water Source System permits are: 

i. Rainwater: $ 

ii. NSF 350 systems: $ 

iii. Foundation Drainage: $ 

iv. Graywater: $ 

v. Blackwater: $ 

vi. Transfer of any permit: $ 

(b) The fees set forth in this Section 2.1.C.4 may be adjusted each year, without further 
action by the City Council. 

01/07/2020 
Page 69 of 118



10  

Not later than April 1, the Director shall report to the Controller the revenues generated 
by the fees for the prior fiscal year and the prior fiscal year’s costs of operation, as well 
as any other information that the Controller determines appropriate to the performance 
of the duties set forth in the Section. 

Not later than May 15, the Controller shall determine whether the current fees produce, 
or are projected to produce, revenues sufficient to support the costs of providing the 
services for which the fees are assessed and that the fees will not produce revenue that 
exceeds the reasonable costs of providing the services for which the fees are assessed. 

The Controller shall if necessary, adjust the fees upward or downward for the upcoming 
fiscal year as appropriate to ensure that the program recovers the costs of operation 
without producing revenue that exceeds the reasonable costs of providing the services 
for which the fees are assessed. The adjusted rates shall become operative on July 1. 

5. Operating Requirements. When the Director determines the applicant has satisfied all the 
requirements of this Section 2.1.C, the Director may issue an operations permit for an 
Alternate Water Source System. Permittees shall timely submit all water quality monitoring 
information required by the provisions of this ordinance and the rules and regulations of the 
California Department of Public Health and California State Water Resources Control 
Board. Permittees shall conduct ongoing backflow prevention and cross connection testing 
in accordance with this ordinance, the rules and regulations of the California Department of 
Public Health and California State Water Resources Control Board, and all applicable local, 
state, and federal laws. 

6. Nonpotable Water Use Audits. When required by the Director, the Permittee or property 
owner shall conduct a Nonpotable Water use audit describing the extent of Nonpotable 
Water use in accordance with the requirements provided by the Director. 

7. Sale or Transfer. Permittees shall notify the Director of any intent to sell or transfer the 
building or facility containing an Alternate Water Source System within thirty (30) days 
following the sale or transfer of property, in accordance with regulations adopted by the 
Director. 

8. Inspection and Notices of Violation. The Director may inspect any Alternate Water 
Source System subject to the requirements of this Section 2.1.C to determine compliance 
with the provisions of this ordinance and applicable regulations. 

9. Violation and Penalties. Any Permittee or person otherwise subject to the requirements of 
this Section 2.1.C who violates any provision of this Section 2.1.C or any applicable rule or 
regulation shall be subject to enforcement of relevant administrative penalties. The Director 
may impose administrative penalties and may pursue any other legal remedies for such 
violations. 

10. Revocation and Suspension of Permit. The Director may order a Permittee to cease 
operation of an Alternate Water Source System or may revoke or suspend the permit to 
operate if the Director determines that: 

01/07/2020 
Page 70 of 118



11  

(a) The manager, operator, or any employee has violated any provision of this Section 
2.1.C or any regulation issued pursuant to this Section 2.1.C; 

(b) The Alternate Water Source System is being operated or maintained in a manner 
threatening the public health or health of patrons and/or residents; 

(c) The owner or operator has refused to allow any duly authorized City official to inspect 
the premises or the operations of the Alternate Water Source System; or 

(d) The California State Water Resources Control Board has directed such action. 

D. Use of Recycled Water for Single-Family Residential Common Landscaping. All new 
Single-family Residential units with landscaping provided by a water meter serving three or 
more homes that is managed by a homeowners’ association or other association or entity shall 
be irrigated with Recycled Water if Recycled Water is available within 200 feet of the property 
line. If Recycled Water is planned to be made available to the development within ten years 
from the date of building permit issuance or is within the adopted Recycled Water project area, 
a system shall be constructed that will enable Recycled Water to be easily connected to the 
irrigation system once the Recycled Water supply is available within 200 feet of the property 
line, locating irrigation system plumbing such that the system can be supplied near the 
anticipated point of connection to the future Recycled Water system, ensuring there are no 
cross-connections between Recycled Water and potable water supplies, and using irrigation 
system components suitable for use with Recycled Water.  

Alternate Water Source Systems shall be labeled in compliance with Chapter 6, Section 601.3, 
of the California Plumbing Code. 

{CODE SECTION} 2.2. REQUIREMENTS FOR MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
BUILDINGS AND NONRESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS. 

A.  Multi-Family and Nonresidential Exterior Faucet Locks. Locks shall be installed on all 
publicly accessible exterior faucets and hose bibs. 

B.  Water Meters to Measure Indoor Water Use. For new buildings or additions with a total 
gross floor area of 50,000 square feet or more, separate water meters or submeters shall be 
installed to measure indoor water use as follows: 

1. For each individual leased, rented, or other tenant space within the building projected to 
consume more than 100 gallons per day (380 L/day). 

2. For each building that uses more than 100 gallons per day (380 L/day) on a parcel 
containing multiple buildings. 

3. Where potable water is used for industrial/process uses, for water supplied to the following 
subsystems: 

(a) Makeup water for cooling towers where flow through is greater than 500 gpm (30 L/s); 

01/07/2020 
Page 71 of 118



12  

(b) Makeup water for evaporative coolers greater than 6 gpm (0.04 L/s); and 

(c) Steam and hot-water boilers with energy input more than 500,000 Btu/h (147 kW). 

C.  Cooling Towers. All newly constructed cooling towers shall include devices to capture and 
reuse the blowdown water discharged from the cooling tower, operated in accordance with 
Section 2.2.D of this ordinance. Plumbing to facilitate the use of Alternate Water Sources shall 
be labeled in compliance with Chapter 6, Section 601.3, of the California Plumbing Code. 

D. Use of Alternate Water Sources for Multi-family and Nonresidential Buildings. All new 
Multi-family Residential and Nonresidential structures shall include dual plumbing systems that 
facilitate and maximize the use of Alternate Water Sources for use in irrigation, toilet flushing, 
cooling towers, and other uses suitable for Nonpotable Water as allowed by the appropriate 
agencies in compliance with the following: 

1. If Recycled Water is available within 200 feet of the property line or if the Director has 
determined that it is reasonably available, 100 percent of water for toilets, urinals, floor 
drains, and process cooling and heating in that building shall come from Recycled Water. 
Plumbing to facilitate the use of Alternate Water Sources shall be labeled in compliance 
with Chapter 6, Section 601.3, of the California Plumbing Code. 

2. If Recycled Water is planned to be made available to the development within ten years from 
the date of building permit issuance or the development is within the adopted Recycled 
Water project area, the development may meet the requirements of this Section 2.2.D solely 
by building out the dual plumbing distribution system to the anticipated point of connection 
to the future Recycled Water system. Plumbing to facilitate the use of Alternate Water 
Sources shall be labeled in compliance with Chapter 6, Section 601.3, of the California 
Plumbing Code. 

3. Onsite Treated Nonpotable Water Systems. If Recycled Water is not available to the 
development and is not anticipated to be made available to the development within ten 
years, the development shall install onsite water collection and treatment systems to capture, 
collect, treat, and distribute Graywater, Rainwater, and Stormwater runoff. The use of 
treated Blackwater may be allowed by the Director. 

(a) Applicability. This Section 2.2.D.3 shall apply to the installation and operation of 
Alternate Water Source Systems at new development projects with a total gross floor 
area of [] square feet or more and to the voluntary installation and operation of Alternate 
Water Source Systems at sites containing Multi-family Residential and Nonresidential 
buildings. This Section 2.2.D.3 shall not apply to systems at Single-family Residential 
occupancies, Graywater systems where Graywater is collected solely for subsurface 
irrigation and does not require treatment and that are regulated by Chapter 15 
(commencing with Section 1501.0) of the California Plumbing Code (Part 5 of Title 24 
of the California Code of Regulations), as determined by the Director, or Rainwater 
systems where Rainwater is collected solely for subsurface irrigation, drip irrigation, or 
non-sprinkled surface applications and does not require treatment and that are regulated 
by Chapter 16 (commencing with Section 1601.0) of the California Plumbing Code 

01/07/2020 
Page 72 of 118



13  

(Part 5 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations), as determined by the 
Director. 

(b) Development Project Requirements. 

i. All toilet and urinal flushing and irrigation demands shall be met through the 
collection and reuse of available onsite Rainwater, Graywater, and Foundation 
Drainage, to the extent required by application of the Water Budget 
Documentation developed for each project. 

ii. Project applicants shall use the Water Budget Calculator, as provided by the 
Onsite Treated Nonpotable Water Program established by the Director, to 
prepare a Water Budget assessing the amount of Rainwater, Graywater, and 
Foundation Drainage produced onsite, and the planned toilet and urinal flushing 
and irrigation demands. 

iii. If, based on the Water Budget Documentation, the available supply from onsite 
sources exceeds the demands for toilet and urinal flushing and irrigation, 100% 
of those demands shall be met by using the available onsite sources. If, based on 
the Water Budget Documentation, the available supply from onsite sources is 
less than the demands for toilet and urinal flushing and irrigation, 100% of the 
available onsite supply shall be used to meet the demands for toilet and urinal 
flushing and irrigation. Available Blackwater or Stormwater supplies may be 
used instead of, or in addition to Rainwater, Graywater, and Foundation 
Drainage to meet the available onsite supply requirements calculated in 
accordance with the Water Budget Documentation requirements. 

iv. Additional Requirements for District Systems. All District Systems shall 
conform to the following requirements, subject to the Director’s determination, 
is his or her sole discretion, that an exception to any of such requirements will 
fulfill the purposes and objectives of this ordinance. Where a District System 
complies with the requirements in Section 2.2.D.3(b)iv.1 through 2.2.D.3(b)iv.4, 
including any exceptions approved by the Director, individual development 
projects within the District shall not be required to demonstrate compliance as 
long as the individual development projects are provided service by the 
approved District System. 

1. In addition to preparation of the Water Budget, project applicants for 
District Systems shall submit implementation plans for review and 
approval, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Onsite 
Treated Nonpotable Water Program established by the Director. 

2. District Systems shall be operated by a single Permittee having sole 
control of operations of all of its facilities, including but not limited to 
treatment and distribution facilities. District Systems shall be constructed 
in accordance with all applicable standards and specifications set by the 
water service provider, sewer service provider, and/or any authority 
having jurisdiction. 

01/07/2020 
Page 73 of 118



14  

3. District Systems and development projects shall not provide Nonpotable 
Water to water users or for purposes located outside the boundaries of 
the District or approved development project, except when the water 
users or other purposes are located on property contiguous to, or across a 
public right of way from, the boundaries of the District or approved 
development project, and the total amount of Nonpotable Water 
produced by the Alternate Water Source System will not exceed 125% of 
the District System’s or approved development project’s Nonpotable 
Water demands for toilet and urinal flushing and irrigation, as 
determined by the approved Water Budget Documentation. 

4. For District Systems, the ongoing operation and maintenance 
responsibilities of the responsible party shall be held by the owner of the 
common areas within the District development project and may be 
transferred to a homeowners’ association or similar entity that maintains 
the common areas within the District development project. 

v. The Director may approve alternate District Systems that will achieve 
compliance with the purposes and objectives of this ordinance, in accordance 
with the rules and regulations of the Onsite Treated Nonpotable Water Program 
established by the Director. Alternative District Systems may include, but are 
not limited to, water purchase agreements. 

vi. City departments shall not issue an encroachment permit, a site permit, or a 
plumbing permit for a project, or approve a Nonpotable Water Engineering 
Report, prior to the Director’s determination that the Water Budget 
Documentation has been prepared in accordance with the rules for Water Budget 
calculations in the Onsite Treated Nonpotable Water Program established by the 
Director. 

vii. Subdivision Approvals. 

1. Parcel Map or Tentative Subdivision Map Conditions. The Director 
of Public Works shall not approve a parcel map or tentative subdivision 
map for any property unless a condition is imposed requiring compliance 
with this ordinance to serve the potential uses of the property covered by 
the parcel map or tentative subdivision map, as specified in the 
provisions of this ordinance. 

2. Subdivision Regulations. The Director of Public Works shall adopt 
regulations consistent with, and in furtherance of this ordinance. 

3. Final Maps. The Director of Public Works shall not endorse and file a 
final map for property within the boundaries of the City without first 
determining that the subdivider has complied with the conditions 
imposed on the parcel map or tentative subdivision map pursuant to this 
ordinance and for any such conditions not fully satisfied prior to the 
recordation of the final map, the subdivider has signed a certificate of 

01/07/2020 
Page 74 of 118



15  

agreement and/or improvement agreement, to ensure compliance with 
such conditions. 

4. This Section 2.2.D.3(b)vii shall not apply to parcel maps or tentative 
subdivision maps submitted solely for the purposes of condominium 
conversion. 

viii. In the event that a privately owned Alternate Water Supply System approved by 
the Director is subsequently determined by the California Public Utilities 
Commission to be subject to that agency’s jurisdiction and regulation, the City 
may, with the consent of the affected owner, acquire and operate the facilities. 

(c) Regulation of Alternate Water Sources. 

i. Any person or entity who installs and operates an Alternate Water Source 
System shall comply with this ordinance, the rules and regulations adopted by 
the California Department of Public Health, and all applicable local, state, and 
federal laws. Alternate Water Source Systems shall be designed and built in 
compliance with Title 17 and Title 22 of California Code of Regulations, 
Chapter 15 of the California Plumbing Code and labeled in compliance with 
Chapter 6, Section 601.3, of the California Plumbing Code. 

ii. Onsite Treated Nonpotable Water Program. Within ninety (90) days after 
passage of this ordinance, the Director shall establish a program for Onsite 
Treated Nonpotable Water systems including rules and regulations regarding the 
operation of Alternate Water Source Systems necessary to effectuate the 
purposes of this ordinance and to protect public health and safety. This Onsite 
Treated Nonpotable Water Program shall include the risk-based water quality 
standards established by the California State Water Resources Control Board 
and shall address, at a minimum: 

1. Water quality criteria, including risk-based log reduction targets for the 
removal of pathogens such as enteric viruses, parasitic protozoa, and 
enteric bacteria for Nonpotable Water sources, Graywater, Rainwater, 
Stormwater, and Blackwater, and nonpotable end uses, toilet and urinal 
flushing, clothes washing, irrigation, and dust suppression; 

2. Water quality monitoring requirements, including content and 
frequencies; 

3. Reporting requirements for the water quality monitoring results, 
including content and frequencies; 

4. Notification and public information requirements; 

5. Cross-connection controls; and 

6. Operation and maintenance requirements. 

01/07/2020 
Page 75 of 118



16  

iii. The Director shall review applications for Alternate Water Source Systems and 
may issue or deny such applications, in accordance with applicable laws and 
regulations. 

iv. The relevant City departments shall review plans and issue or deny permits for 
the construction, installation, or modification of Alternate Water Source 
Systems, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 

(d) Project Applicant and/or Permittee Design and Construction Requirements. 

i. Prior to initiating installation of any Alternate Water Source project, project 
applicants shall submit to the Director an application for permits to operate 
Alternate Water Source Systems. Such applications shall comply with the 
requirements of this ordinance and any rules and regulations of the Onsite 
Treated Nonpotable Water Program established by the Director. Project 
applicants shall pay a non-refundable permit application fee to cover the costs of 
investigation and processing the application and issuing the permit. Each project 
application submitted to the Director shall include a Nonpotable Water 
Engineering Report that provides project information determined by the Director 
to be necessary for complete review of the proposed project. City departments 
may not approve or issue permits for any site installing an Alternate Water 
Source System unless and until the Director has approved the Nonpotable Water 
Engineering Report. 

The Nonpotable Water Engineering Report for District Systems must include 
information on the permanent legal agreements between property owners and 
provide documentation that each party is a willing and responsible participant in 
the District Nonpotable Water use. 

ii. System Design. All buildings using Nonpotable Water from Alternate Water 
Source Systems shall include: 

1. A flow meter on the nonpotable distribution system to account for 
Nonpotable Water use; 

2. A reduced pressure backflow assembly (RP) within twenty-five (25) feet 
of the downstream side of the point of connection or meter to protect the 
City’s public water and/or Recycled Water system; 

3. Signage that state law and the California Department of Public Health’s 
rules and regulations require; 

4. Cross connection control in accordance with Titles 17 and 22 of the 
California Code of Regulations; 

5. Any other requirements the Director determines are necessary to protect 
public health. 

01/07/2020 
Page 76 of 118



17  

iii. Plumbing Permit. A project applicant shall obtain from the Department of 
Building Inspection an appropriate plumbing permit and any other building or 
installation permit required to construct, install, and/or alter an Alternate Water 
Source System. Each parcel within a District shall obtain appropriate plumbing 
and any other building or installation permits required. 

iv. Encroachment Permit. A project applicant shall obtain from the Department of 
Public Works appropriate authorization for placement of any pipelines or other 
portions of an Alternate Water Source System within the public right-of-way. 

v. Construction Certification Letter. Project applicants shall certify to the 
Director that Alternate Water Source System construction is complete and 
consistent with the approved Nonpotable Water Engineering Report in 
accordance with the provisions of this ordinance and any implementing rules 
and regulations. City departments may not approve or issue a First Certificate of 
Occupancy or approval for any Alternate Water Source System until the 
Director has reviewed and verified the Construction Certificate Letter. 

(e) Fees. 

i. The non-refundable application fees for Alternate Water Source System permits 
are: 

1. Rainwater: $ 

2. NSF 350 systems: $ 

3. Foundation Drainage: $ 

4. Graywater: $ 

5. Blackwater: $ 

6. Transfer of any permit: $ 

7. District Scale, the applicable amount above, plus: $ per hour for plan 
review and/or onsite inspection 

ii. The fees set forth in this Section 4.2.D.3(e) may be adjusted each year, without 
further action by the City Council. 

Not later than April 1, the Director shall report to the Controller the revenues 
generated by the fees for the prior fiscal year and the prior fiscal year’s costs of 
operation, as well as any other information that the Controller determines 
appropriate to the performance of the duties set forth in this Section 2.2.D. 

Not later than May 15, the Controller shall determine whether the current fees 
produce, or are projected to produce, revenues sufficient to support the costs of 
providing the services for which the fees are assessed and that the fees will not 

01/07/2020 
Page 77 of 118



18  

produce revenue that exceeds the reasonable costs of providing the services for 
which the fees are assessed. 

The Controller shall if necessary, adjust the fees upward or downward for the 
upcoming fiscal year as appropriate to ensure that the program recovers the costs 
of operation without producing revenue that exceeds the reasonable costs of 
providing the services for which the fees are assessed. The adjusted rates shall 
become operative on July 1. 

4. Operating Requirements. When the Director determines the applicant has satisfied all the 
requirements of this Section 2.2.D, the Director may issue an operations permit for an 
Alternate Water Source System. Permittees shall timely submit all water quality monitoring 
information required by the provisions of this ordinance and the rules and regulations of 
California Department of Public Health and the California State Water Resources Control 
Board. Permittees shall conduct ongoing backflow prevention and cross connection testing 
in accordance with this ordinance, the rules and regulations of the California Department of 
Public Health and California State Water Resources Control Board, and all applicable local, 
state, and federal laws. 

5. Nonpotable Water Use Audits. When required by the Director, the Permittee or property 
owner shall conduct a Nonpotable Water use audit describing the extent of Nonpotable 
Water use in accordance with the requirements provided by the Director. 

6. Sale or Transfer. Permittees shall notify the Director of any intent to sell or transfer the 
building or facility containing an Alternate Water Source System within thirty (30) days 
following the sale or transfer of property, in accordance with regulations adopted by the 
Director. 

7. Inspection and Notices of Violation. The Director may inspect any Alternate Water 
Source System subject to the requirements of this Section 2.2.D to determine compliance 
with the provisions of this ordinance and applicable regulations. 

8. Violation and Penalties. Any Permittee or person otherwise subject to the requirements of 
this Section 2.2.D who violates any provision of this Section 2.2.D or any applicable rule or 
regulation shall be subject to enforcement of relevant administrative penalties. The Director 
may impose administrative penalties and may pursue any other legal remedies for such 
violations. 

9. Revocation and Suspension of Permit. The Director may order a Permittee to cease 
operation of an Alternate Water Source System, may revoke or suspend the permit to 
operate, and/or may terminate the operation of, and modify to render inoperable an 
Alternate Water Source System, if the Director determines that: 

(a) The manager, operator, or any employee has violated any provision of this Section 
2.2.D or any regulation issued pursuant to this Section 2.2.D; 

(b) The Alternate Water Source System is being operated or maintained in a manner 
threatening the public health or health of patrons and/or residents; 

01/07/2020 
Page 78 of 118



19  

(c) The owner or operator has refused to allow any duly authorized City official to inspect 
the premises or the operations of the Alternate Water Source System; or 

(d) The California State Water Resources Control Board has directed such action. 

10.  Exceptions. 

(a) Additions that use any part of the existing plumbing piping system are exempted from 
this Section 2.2.D. 

(b) Alterations that do not include replacing all of the potable water piping are exempted 
from this Section 2.2.D. 

(c) Mental hospitals or other facilities operated by a public agency for the treatment of 
persons with mental disorders are exempted from this Section 2.2.D. 

(d) Where Recycled Water quality has been deemed unsuitable by the Director for a 
particular fixture or equipment, the fixture and/or equipment shall be dual-plumbed for 
future connection. 

{CODE SECTION} 2.3. REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMERCIAL FACILITIES. 

A. Use of Manually Operated Toilets in Commercial Facilities. Toilets and urinals in 
commercial facilities shall not have sensor or automatic flush valves and instead shall have 
manually operated flush mechanisms. 

B. Use of Manually Operated Faucets in Commercial Facilities. Faucets in commercial 
facilities shall not have automatic sensors installed and instead shall have manually operated 
handles, which may include metering faucets. 

1. Exceptions. Hospitals and airports are exempted from this Section 2.3.B. 

C. Water Efficiency in Commercial Kitchens. All new and replacement commercial 
dishwashers, food steamers, combination ovens, and food waste pulping systems must comply 
with water efficiency standards as defined in the 2019 California Green Building Standards 
Code, Part 11, Section A5.303.3 – Appliances and fixtures for commercial application. These 
standards are mandatory for the purposes of this provision. 

{CODE SECTION 2.4. REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO SALE AND INSTALLATION OF 
COMPLIANT FIXTURES AND FITTINGS. 

A. Retail Establishments Selling Compliant Fixtures and Fittings. All stores, outlets and other 
retails establishments shall only offer for sale plumbing fixtures and fittings that are in 
compliance with California appliance water efficiency standards. Model numbers of plumbing 
fixtures and fittings offered for sale must be listed in the California Energy Commission 
Appliance Efficiency Database. 

01/07/2020 
Page 79 of 118



20  

B. Plumbers, Contractors, and Service Providers Installing Compliant Fixtures and Fittings. 
All plumbers, contractors, and other service providers shall not install any plumbing fixtures or 
other devices that are not in compliance with California appliance water efficiency standards. 
Model numbers of plumbing fixtures and fittings installed by plumbers, contractors, and service 
providers must be listed in the California Energy Commission Appliance Efficiency Database. 

{CODE SECTION} 2.5. REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION AND 
POOL AND SPA COVERS FOR RESIDENTIAL AND NONRESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES. 

Requirements in this provision may be addressed in [Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance adopted by 
jurisdiction]. In any instances of conflicting requirements, the more stringent requirement shall prevail. 
(Jurisdictions may wish to edit this provision prior to adoption to more closely align with the specific 
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance adopted by jurisdiction.) 

A. Water Meters for Landscape Irrigation. A landscape water meter shall be installed for 
landscape irrigation for the following: 

1. When required by the California Department of Water Resources Model Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance or local water efficient landscape ordinance; 

2. Additions and alterations, with a valuation of $200,000 or more, where the entire potable water 
system is replaced, including all underground piping to the existing meter; and 

3. Landscaped areas shall have flow sensors or hydrometers, regardless of being metered 
separately. 

B. Irrigation Controllers. In new construction or building additions or alterations with over 500 
square feet of cumulative landscaped area, install irrigation controllers and sensors which include 
the following criteria: 

1. Controllers shall be weather- or soil moisture-based controllers that automatically adjust 
irrigation in response to changes in plants’ needs as weather conditions change. 

2. Weather-based controllers without integral rain sensors or communication systems that 
account for local rainfall shall have a separate wired or wireless rain sensor that connects or 
communicates with the controller(s). Soil moisture-based controllers are not required to have 
rain sensor input. 

3. Exception. For new residential construction, manual irrigation is also permitted. 

C. Irrigation System. In landscaped areas, irrigation nozzles shall have a maximum precipitation 
rate of one inch per hour. 

D. Irrigation Audits. For newly constructed landscaped areas, the local agency shall administer an 
irrigation audit to verify that the irrigation system complies with regulations, as well as to identify 
potential deficiencies and assure that corrections have been made. If corrections are needed, these 
must be addressed prior to approval of the new construction. 

01/07/2020 
Page 80 of 118



21  

E. Swimming Pool and Spa Covers. Swimming pools and spas must be in compliance with the 
2019 Building Energy Efficiency Standards for Part 6 of Title 24 of the California Code of 
Regulations Section 110.4. For Single-family Residential dwellings, any permanently installed 
outdoor in-ground swimming pool or spa not covered by the scope of the 2019 Building Energy 
Efficiency Standards for Part 6 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations Section 110.4, 
including any swimming pool or spa that is non-heated or has electric resistance heating deriving 
at least 60 percent of the annual heating energy from site solar energy or recovered energy, shall 
be equipped with a cover having a manual or power-operated reel system.  

1. Exceptions.  

(a). For irregular-shaped swimming pools and spas not covered by the scope of the 2019 
Building Energy Efficiency Standards for Part 6 of Title 24 of the California Code of 
Regulations Section 110.4, including any swimming pool or spa that is non-heated or has 
electric resistance heating deriving at least 60 percent of the annual heating energy from 
site solar energy or recovered energy, for which it is infeasible to cover 100 percent of the 
swimming pool or spa with a reel system due to its irregular shape, other types of covers 
may be allowed as determined by the Director. 

(b). Additions or alterations to existing swimming pools and spas not covered by the scope 
of the 2019 Building Energy Efficiency Standards for Part 6 of Title 24 of the California 
Code of Regulations Section 110.4, including any swimming pool or spa that is non-
heated or has electric resistance heating deriving at least 60 percent of the annual 
heating energy from site solar energy or recovered energy, with a valuation not 
exceeding $25,000 are exempted from this Section 2.5.E. 

 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY. If any portion of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
inapplicable to any situation by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance or the applicability of this Ordinance to 
other situations. 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, 
requirements, orders, and matters established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full 
force and effect from and after the expiration of ninety (90) days after the date of its adoption. 

SECTION 6. POSTING AND PUBLICATION. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish this 
ordinance pursuant to §36933 of the Government Code. 

 

  

01/07/2020 
Page 81 of 118



22  

THE FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS INTRODUCED AT A MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL HELD ON THE [] DAY OF [MONTH YEAR] AND WAS FINALLY ADOPTED 
AT A MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL HELD ON THE [] DAY OF [MONTH 
YEAR], AND SAID ORDINANCE WAS DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH LAW BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

NOES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

 

APPROVED:      DATE: 

___________________________________  ________________________ 

NAME, Title 

 

ATTEST:       DATE: 

___________________________________  ________________________ 

NAME, Title 

 

 

 

 

  

01/07/2020 
Page 82 of 118



23  

EXHIBIT A 

 

EXPRESS FINDINGS FOR LOCAL AMENDMENTS OF BUILDING STANDARDS 

 

Section 1.1.8 of Part 2 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations (California Building 
Standards Code) and Sections 17958 and 18941.5 of the California Health and Safety Code provide 
that any city, county, or city and county may make more restrictive amendments to the provisions 
of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. Sections 17958.5 and 17958.7 of the California 
Health and Safety Code require that for each proposed local amendment to the provisions of Title 
24 of the California Code of Regulations, the local governing body must make an express finding 
supporting its determination that each such local amendment is reasonably necessary because of 
local climatic, geological, or topographical conditions. Section 101.7.1 of Part 11 of Title 24 of the 
California Code of Regulations, known as the California Green Building Standards Code, provides 
that local climatic, geological, or topographical conditions include environmental conditions as 
established by the city, county, or city and county. 

Pursuant to Sections 17958.5 and 17958.7 of the California Health and Safety Code, the following 
tables summarize the provisions of the 2019 California Building Standards Code in Title 24 of the 
California Code of Regulations being amended by the Ordinance and the findings providing 
justification for each amendment. 

Section of 
Ordinance 
Making 
Amendment 

Section of 
CA Code 
Being 
Amended 

Title Add, 
Delete, or 
Amend? 

Justification 
(see below 
for key) 

{CODE 
SECTION} 
2.1A 

110.3(c) of 
Part 6 of 
Title 24 

Mandatory Requirements for Service 
Water-Heating Systems and Equipment 

Add C 

 

Key to Justification for Amendments to Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations 

C This amendment is justified on the basis of a local climatic condition. Risks such 
as climate change and drought could negatively affect water supply reliability in 
Santa Clara County. Santa Clara County is characterized by a dry climate and 
experiences the effects of drought and the benefits of saving water more 
intensely than some other communities in California. Santa Clara County’s 
vulnerabilities to climate change include increases in seasonal irrigation 
demands, a decrease in imported water supplies as a result of reduced snow pack 
and a shift in the timing of runoff, more frequent and severe droughts, changes in 
surface water quality associated with changes in flows and temperature, and 

01/07/2020 
Page 83 of 118



24  

changes in imported water quality due to salinity intrusion in the delta. 
Temperature projections for the Bay Area show an expected increase in the 
frequency and intensity of heat waves that could result in a decrease in water 
supply and/or changes in water demands. Precipitation for the beginning of 2018 
was 60% of average levels at the San Jose Index Station and significantly lower 
than that of the Santa Cruz Mountains, the Diablo Range and South County, with 
snow water equivalent for the Northern Sierra falling well below normal. It is 
necessary to maximize water efficiency and reduce the waste and unnecessary 
use of potable water in order to help ensure that water supply is capable of 
reliably satisfying demand while withstanding the potential and expected future 
drought conditions in Santa Clara County. 

G This amendment is justified on the basis of a local geological condition. 

T This amendment is justified on the basis of a local topographical condition. 

 

 

 

 

01/07/2020 
Page 84 of 118



		

	 1	

MODEL WATER EFFICIENCY ORDINANCE FILING INSTRUCTIONS 
 
OVERVIEW: 
 
In order to comply with certain requirements governed by the California Building Standards 
Commission (“CBSC”) and the California Energy Commission (“CEC”), certain administrative 
steps must be taken subsequent to the adoption of Ordinance No. XXXX (“Ordinance”), An 
Ordinance of the City Council of the City of [] Adding a New Chapter [] (Water Efficient New 
Development) to Title [] of the City of [] Municipal Code Related to Requirements for New 
Development that Promote Water Use Efficiency and the Development of Alternate Sources of 
Water Supply, establishing rules and regulations to help ensure that new development is poised 
to be water efficient in order to extend the City’s water supplies. 
 
Requirements in the Single-Family Residential Water Waste Reduction when Heating Water 
section of the Ordinance make more restrictive amendments to certain provisions of Title 24 of 
the California Code of Regulations (“California Building Standards Code”). More specifically, 
these amendments are to certain provisions of Part 6 of Title 24 of the California Code of 
Regulations (“California Building Energy Efficiency Standards”). Section 1.1.8 of Part 2 of Title 
24 of the California Code of Regulations and Sections 17958 and 18941.5 of the California 
Health and Safety Code provide that any city, county, or city and county may make more 
restrictive amendments to the provisions of the California Building Standards Code. Section 
25402.1(h)2 of the California Public Resources Code and Section 10-106 of Part 6 of Title 24 of 
the California Code of Regulations provide that local government agencies may adopt and 
enforce energy standards for newly constructed buildings, additions, alterations, and repairs to 
existing buildings, provided the standards are cost-effective and will require the buildings to be 
designed to consume no more energy than permitted by the Building Energy Efficiency 
Standards. Local amendments to the California Building Standards Code are subject to certain 
requirements governed by the CBSC, and local amendments to the California Building Energy 
Efficiency Standards are subject to certain requirements governed by the CEC.1,2 Key elements 
of these requirements are discussed below. 
 
Sections 17958.5 and 17958.7 of the California Health and Safety Code require that for each 
proposed local amendment to the provisions of the California Building Standards Code, the local 
governing body must make an express finding supporting its determination that each such local 
amendment is reasonably necessary because of local climatic, geological, or topographical 
conditions. Section 101.7.1 of Part 11 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, known 
as the California Green Building Standards Code, provides that local climatic, geological, or 
topographical conditions include environmental conditions established by the city, county, or 
city and county. Pursuant to Sections 17958.5 and 17958.7 of the California Health and Safety 
Code, the provisions of the California Building Standards Code in Title 24 of the California 
Code of Regulations being amended and the respective express findings applicable to each 
amendment are summarized in and attached to the Ordinance as Exhibit A (Express Findings for 
Local Amendments of Building Standards). 
 

	
1	http://www.bsc.ca.gov/Rulemaking/LocalCodeOrdinances.aspx	
2	https://www.energy.ca.gov/title24/2016standards/ordinances/	

01/07/2020 
Page 85 of 118



		

	 2	

Local amendments to the California Building Standards Code are not effective until copies of the 
amendment documents meeting all document filing requirements have been filed with the CBSC. 
Additionally, the CEC review and approval process involves posting an adopted ordinance for 
public comment for sixty (60) days followed by approval at a CEC Business Meeting. After 
adoption of the Ordinance, the City shall file the required amendment documents and follow the 
required approval processes with the CBSC and CEC in accordance with each agency’s 
respective requirements. 
 
The model water efficiency ordinance and accompanying cost-effectiveness analysis upon which 
this Ordinance is based and to which this Ordinance is substantially similar were developed with 
informal input from staff of both the CBSC and the CEC in anticipation of each agency’s 
respective requirements and in order to preemptively identify any potential barriers to approval, 
of which none were identified. The cost-effectiveness analysis found that the energy standards in 
the model water efficiency ordinance relevant to the CBSC and the CEC are cost-effective and 
require buildings to be designed to consume no more energy than permitted by Part 6 of Title 24 
of the California Code of Regulations, and the Ordinance includes the required language stating 
this finding. 
 
SPECIFIC FILING INSTRUCTIONS: 
 
CBSC 
 
Detailed information regarding CBSC requirements for local amendments to building standards 
is located at the web address listed above in Footnote 1 and also in the CBSC publication, Guide 
for Local Amendments of Building Standards, available online. The following is an excerpt from 
that document relevant to the filing requirements for this Ordinance: 
 

“1. Local Amendments under the California Building Standards Law: 
 
Authority: Health and Safety Code Sections 18941.5, with reference to HSC Section 
17958.7, allows for more restrictive local amendments that are reasonably necessary 
because of local climatic, geological, or topographical conditions. Section 101.7.1 of Part 
11 of Title 24, known as the California Green Building Standards Code, provides that 
local climatic, geological, or topographical conditions include environmental conditions 
established by the city, county, or city and county. 
[References: HSC 18941.5, 17958.5, and 17958.7 available in Appendix 1 and CBC 1.1.8 
and 1.8.6 available in Appendix 2.] 
 
Amendment Application: Amendments to Title 24 made under the authority of HSC 
18941.5 may apply to any building, or building feature, that is not otherwise subject to 
another state law listed herein. For example, amendments for residential buildings, 
historic buildings, and energy conservation are among the subjects of other state laws and 
may not be subject to an amendment made under the authority of HSC 18941.5. 
 
Document Requirements: Documents must be expressly marked to clearly identify or 
demonstrate the following: 

01/07/2020 
Page 86 of 118



		

	 3	

• The state law providing the authority for the amendment(s). 
• The Title 24 section being amended. The amendments should be discernable from the 

text of Title 24 not being amended. 
• Amendments must be more restrictive building standards, including green building 

standards, than the building standards provided in Title 24. 
• The amendment documentation must clearly show that the local governing body 

made an express finding that amendments to the building standards in Title 24, 
including green building standards, are reasonably necessary because of local 
climatic, geological, or topographical conditions. Each amendment must meet these 
requirements. 

 
Filing Requirements: Local amendments are not effective until copies of the amendment 
documents meeting the requirements have been filed with the CBSC. Address 
amendment documents to: 
 
California Building Standards Commission 
2525 Natomas Park Drive, Suite 130 
Sacramento, CA 95833-2936 
 
Or, submit an electronic searchable PDF (Portable Document Format) via the following 
email address: ordinancefilings@dgs.ca.gov, provided the documents include the 
ordinance identification and signature of the governing body officials. 
 
The CBSC will acknowledge receipt of amendment documents and review findings in 
writing. Local amendments accepted for filing will be made available to the public on the 
CBSC website.” 

 
Based on the above instructions, City staff should prepare and submit, by mail or email, a letter 
to the CBSC to file the amendment documents and should include a signed copy of the 
Ordinance, the accompanying Staff Report (which should be based on the Background 
Document and thus include the necessary information on the state law providing the authority for 
the amendment(s)), and the accompanying Cost-Effectiveness Report. For an example of the 
form and content for this filing letter, City staff can view current ordinances on file on the CBSC 
website or work with a consultant as needed. Once the CBSC reviews the filing submission and 
determines that the requirements have been met, they will issue a letter to the City attesting that 
the code modification is “accepted for filing and enforceable”. It should be noted that this review 
is not intended to evaluate the merit of the code modification or express findings but rather to 
attest only to the satisfaction of the cited law for filing of local code amendment supported by an 
express finding with the CBSC. 
 
CEC 
 
Detailed information regarding CEC requirements for local amendments to building standards is 
located at the web address listed above in Footnote 2. The following is an excerpt from that 
webpage relevant to the filing requirements for this Ordinance: 
 

01/07/2020 
Page 87 of 118



		

	 4	

“Local jurisdictions wishing to enforce locally adopted energy standards must submit an 
application with the following materials to the Executive Director: (1) the proposed 
energy standards, (2) the local jurisdiction’s findings and supporting analyses on the 
energy savings and cost effectiveness of the proposed energy standards, (3) a statement or 
finding by the local jurisdiction that the local energy standards will require buildings to 
be designed to consume no more energy than permitted by Part 6, and (4) any findings, 
determinations, declarations or reports, including any negative declaration or 
environmental impact report, required pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act. 
 
Local jurisdictions are required to apply to the Energy Commission for approval, 
documenting the supporting analysis for how the local government has determined that 
their proposed Standards will save more energy than the current statewide Standards and 
the basis of the local government’s determination that the local standards are cost-
effective. Once the Energy Commission staff has verified that the local standards will 
require buildings to use no more energy than the current statewide Standards and that the 
documentation and 60-day public comment period requirements in Section 10-106 are 
met, the application is brought before the full Energy Commission for approval. 
 
For questions regarding Local Ordinances or about applications for a local ordinance to 
exceed the 2016 Standards, contact: 
Ingrid Neumann 
California Energy Commission 
1516 9th Street, MS-37 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Ingrid.Neumann@energy.ca.gov 
 
For questions regarding enforcement of Local Ordinances, contact: 
Joe Loyer 
California Energy Commission 
1516 9th Street, MS-26 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Joe.Loyer@energy.ca.gov” 

 
Based on the above instructions, the text of the Ordinance and Staff Report / Background 
Document should already contain the required elements. Additionally, City staff should prepare 
and submit, by mail, a letter to the attention of the Executive Director of the CEC, currently Mr. 
Drew Bohan, to file the amendment documents and should include a signed copy of the 
Ordinance, the accompanying Staff Report (which should be based on the Background 
Document and thus include the necessary information on the state law providing the authority for 
the amendment(s)), and the accompanying Cost-Effectiveness Report. For an example of the 
form and content for this filing letter, City staff can view current ordinances on file on the CEC 
website or work with a consultant as needed. Once the CEC reviews the filing submission and 
determines that the requirements have been met and once the 60-day public comment period is 
complete, the full Energy Commission will vote on its approval at a Business Meeting. 
 

01/07/2020 
Page 88 of 118



		

	 5	

As this process could take 90 days, the effective date of the Ordinance should be set at 
approximately 90 days after adoption. Similarly, if a January 1, 2020 effective date is desired, 
the Ordinance should be adopted by the end of September 2019. 
 
 
 

01/07/2020 
Page 89 of 118



 
 

NAME OF ORGANIZATION: S EAMLESS  BAY AREA  
 

Name of Contact Person:  
Adina Levin 

 

Phone:  650-646-4344  
Email: 
adina.levin@friendsofcaltrain.com 

 

Presenters:  
Adina Levin, Advocacy Director, 
Seamless Bay Area 

 

 
 
REQUEST (WHAT WILL BE PRESENTED?): 
Policy proposals to achieve a seamlessly integrated, high-ridership regional public 
transportation system 
 
 
 
RELEVANCE TO THE CITIES ASSOCIATION: 
 
The fragmentation of Bay Area public transportation poses serious challenges to cities in 
Santa Clara County and the region, contributing to traffic congestion and reducing 
quality of life. Cities have an opportunity to make their voices heard as customers for 
change. 
 
 
WHAT ACTION IS REQUESTED OF THE CITIES ASSOCIATION? 
 
Sign onto a resolution supporting Seamless Transit Principles (see attached). 
 
 
 
 
MATERIALS TO BE SENT TO SUPPORT PRESENTATION : 
 
Policy presentation 
Seamless Transit Principles Draft Resolution 

01/07/2020 
Page 90 of 118



Policy Proposals 
for a Seamless 
Transit System 
connecting the 
Bay Area

December 2019

01/07/2020 
Page 91 of 118



Mission

Transform the Bay Area’s fragmented and 
inconvenient public transit into a world-class, 
unified, equitable, and widely-used system by 
building a diverse movement for change and 
promoting policy reforms. 

Proposed Legislation, a “Seamless Transit” Bill would:

● Complement a major regional funding measure;
● Establish clear state expectations for regionally 

coordinated public transit in the San Francisco Bay Area; 
and

● Initiate a process of institutional reform that will result in 
an accountable Transportation Network Manager for the 
Bay Area within two years, developed through a Regional 
Commission on Bay Area Transportation Governance 
and Funding. 2

01/07/2020 
Page 92 of 118



Transit should be the backbone of 
the Bay Area, but is not keeping up

3

Between 2001 and 2016 in the Bay Area:

Many people want to use transit -- 
but don’t because it’s too difficult

“It takes too long to 
get around on transit.”

“It doesn’t take me 
where I need to go”

“It’s not frequent enough”

“It’s too confusing”

“It’s not reliable”01/07/2020 
Page 93 of 118



New Funding: An opportunity

4

Polling Suggests:
● Strong support for investment in transit
● Support for systematic improvements to make 

transit seamless, reliable, fast, and affordable;
● Limited trust in the capacity of existing public 

agencies to deliver

01/07/2020 
Page 94 of 118



5

Our Fragmented Regional 
Network is not working for 
anyone  

● Our system isn’t connected or 
logical; little coordination or regional 
vision

● 27 transit agencies are each 
individually struggling

● Billions spent on transit investments 
have not increased overall ridership

● Rapid technological change and 
new forms of mobility create new 
urgency

  

01/07/2020 
Page 95 of 118



6

In a Seamless customer- 
focused regional network:
● A connected rapid transit network is 

strategically planned at regional 
level to work as a system 

● Transit agencies work together to 
operate different parts of the 
integrated network

● Service quality, fares, schedules, 
and wayfinding is standardized to 
be a reliable and as simple as 
possible for users

● Transit and high-capacity vehicles 
move quickly on all major regional 
corridors

  

01/07/2020 
Page 96 of 118



Other Similar 
Regions Are Doing 
Much Better

7

Greater Frankfurt 
(Rhein-Main-Verkehrsverbund) 

San Francisco Bay Area 
(9-county)

Population (m) 4.9 million 7.75 million
Local Governments 408 municipalities 101 cities

Transit Operating Companies 160 27
Annual Transit Ridership 1996 482 million 435 million

Annual Transit Ridership 2018 (SF - 2017) 769 million (60% growth from 1996) 505 million (16% growth from 1996)
2017 Transit Mode Share 19% 6.50%

2017 Central City Transit Mode Share 40% (Frankfurt, pop. 775,000) 26% (San Francisco, pop. 884,000)

Approximately equal scales

01/07/2020 
Page 97 of 118



How do we take the first steps?
Principles for reform

● Put people & customers first

● Set up reform process that allows for 
evolution over time

● Ensure stability of transit agency 
operating revenues; don’t create 
“winners and losers” 

● Recognize & build off of existing 
transit operator strengths & expertise

● Improve efficiency and capacity 

  

01/07/2020 
Page 98 of 118



Three Complementary Policies

Direct resources to advance goals
Connect new transit funding with plans & 
standards associated with an integrated, 
world class transit system.

9

Develop institutions that can deliver
Establish clear regional leadership and  
accountability for mobility outcomes, and ability 
to coordinate multiple entities, by initiating 
institutional reform.

Define our mobility vision & targets
Adopt a strategic policy direction of a 
seamless regional system and set 
sustainable transportation targets

1

2

3

SB-278
Regional Funding 
Measure enabling 
legislation

01/07/2020 
Page 99 of 118



Three Complementary Policies

Direct resources to advance goals
Connect new transit funding with plans & 
standards associated with an integrated, 
world class transit system.

10

Develop institutions that can deliver
Establish clear regional leadership and  
accountability for mobility outcomes, and ability 
to coordinate multiple entities, by initiating 
institutional reform.

Define our mobility vision & targets
Adopt a strategic policy direction of a 
seamless regional system and set 
sustainable transportation targets

1

2

3 “Seamless Transit”
Bill

SB-278
Regional Funding 
Measure enabling 
legislation

Proposed Companion Bill

01/07/2020 
Page 100 of 118



Three Complementary Policies

Direct resources to advance goals
Connect new transit funding with plans & 
standards associated with an integrated, 
world class transit system.

11

Develop institutions that can deliver
Establish clear regional leadership and  
accountability for mobility outcomes, and ability 
to coordinate multiple entities, by initiating 
institutional reform.

Define our mobility vision & targets
Adopt a strategic policy direction of a 
seamless regional system and set 
sustainable transportation targets

1

2

3

SB-278
Regional Funding 
Measure enabling 
legislation with 
institutional reform 
process

Potential in the future 
for One Combined Bill

01/07/2020 
Page 101 of 118



DEFINE OUR MOBILITY VISION & TARGETS

Adopt a strategic policy direction of a seamless regional system and 
set sustainable transportation targets

12

Daily Vehicle Miles 
Traveled per person

Bay Area 
-specific 
targets

1

6.4%
11.6%

82%

Walk
Bike

Other

Drive

Transit

Transit
Walk/Bike

Other

Drive

Weekday Mode of Travel

2015 2040 Targets

23 mi/
day

2015 2040 Targets

Reduce
Driving 
Mode 
Share

Increase 
Transit, 
Walk, Bike, 
and Other 
Mode 
Share

Reduce 
VMT 
Per 

Person

Bay Area mode share + VMT targets should be consistent with state climate goals, State 
Transportation Plan, State Transit Strategic Plan

01/07/2020 
Page 102 of 118



13

Bay Area Transit Standards

Frequent Rapid 
Transit Network 

Plan

Integrated Transit Fare 
Standards

Project Delivery & 
Costing Standards

Mobility Data and 
Integration Standards

Investment Prioritization 
Framework

Multi-modal Corridor and 
Hub Design Standards 

Transit Customer 
Experience Standards

Regional Standards & Plans

DIRECT RESOURCES TO ADVANCE GOALS

Connect new transit funding with plans & standards 
associated with an integrated, world class transit system

2

Accessible Mobility Standards 
& Network Plan

Transit Quality of 
Service Standards

01/07/2020 
Page 103 of 118



DEVELOP INSTITUTIONS THAT CAN DELIVER

Establish clear regional leadership and  accountability for mobility 
outcomes, and ability to coordinate, by initiating institutional reform

14

● Coordinate fares, service standards, schedules, 
customer experience, branding, data, capital planning, 
project delivery, and other functions.

● Establish regional Centers of Excellence, pooling 
expertise & resources for key functions

  

Potential Regional Centers of 
Excellence:

3a

3

Capital Project Delivery
Design & Construction
Customer Experience
Marketing, Branding & Wayfinding 
Customer Information & Technology
Fare Policy & Collection
Data Management
Information Technology
Procurement & Contracts

Greater Berlin & 
German Regions

Greater TorontoGreater Atlanta

Examples:Require the State designate a 
Transportation Network Manager for 
the Bay Area by Jan. 1, 2022, with 
mandate and authority to:

01/07/2020 
Page 104 of 118



15

● Study the collective and individual performance of 
all Bay Area transportation institutions and funding;

● Recommend what entity should permanently 
assume the role of the Network Manager

● Recommend reforms to existing agencies + funding 
sources to State Legislature, including potential 
consolidation of functions to improve performance;

● Investigate options for regulating emerging forms of 
mobilily at regional level

● 12-month time limit; Option for 12-month extension

Precedent:   2017 Georgia state 
legislation HB 848 established 
House Commission on Transit 
Governance and Funding, led to 
2018 State Legislation (HB-930) 
creating new authority, “ATL”.  

3b

3

(4) State Legislators

(4) Locally Elected Officials

(4) Transportation Agency Staff

(4) Outside Technical Experts

(5) Citizen Appointees

Preliminary Proposal for a 21-member Regional 
Commission on Bay Area Transportation 
Governance & Funding 

Establish Regional Commission on 
Bay Area Transportation Governance 
and Funding to:

DEVELOP INSTITUTIONS THAT CAN DELIVER

Establish clear regional leadership and  accountability for mobility 
outcomes, and ability to coordinate, by initiating institutional reform

01/07/2020 
Page 105 of 118



Building Support for Reforms
● “Seamless Transit Principles”

○ 1,300 members of public signed petition
○ 16 Organizations publicly in support 

(of policy direction only)

16
01/07/2020 

Page 106 of 118



Generalized Summary of Feedback on Legislative Approach

From Transit Agency General Managers & Executive Staff (10 of 27 agencies so far)
- Support for concept of Network Manager - but do not require that it’s MTC
- Support for concept of a Commission to investigate process
- Support (or, at a minimum, non-opposition) for reform as long as existing operating revenues are not under threat

From State Agencies (CalSTA, OPR, CalTrans)
- Frustration with regions & operators - state investments in past 10 years have not led to results
- Strong Interest in applying these concepts statewide - Bay Area could be model for rest of state 

From Local Elected Officials (5 BART, 4 Marin, 1 Solano, 4 SF, 3 Caltrain/San Mateo, 2 Santa Clara)
- Frustration with status quo - existing regional processes not working
- Support for overall policy approach, customer-first seamless framework

From MTC Executive Staff
- Acknowledgment that MTC is currently not positioned to take on Transit Network Manager function

MTC Commissioners - to date (7 of 21 consulted)
- Strong interest in institutional reform to create accountability for regional measure
- Support for more performance-oriented, less project-oriented expenditure approach (vs. previous measures)

17
01/07/2020 

Page 107 of 118



Timeline: Proposed Companion “Seamless Transit” Bill

2019 2020 2021 2022

Define Mobility 
Vision & Targets

Nov. 2020
Election

Nov. 2022
Election

Pass Enabling 
Legislation

Regional Funding 
Measure Enabling
Legislation

Incorporate goals, standards & 
targets into expenditure plan & 
revenue oversight

“Seamless 
Transit” Bill

Regional Commission 
on Bay Area 
Transportation 
Governance and 
Funding

1

Direct Resources 
to Advance Goals

Initiate 
Institutional 
Reform

SB-278 “Spot Bill”
Introduced

Intst’l
Reform
Bill

2023

1 3b 3a

Introduce 
Legislation

Sept
2020

Introduce 
Legislation

Sept 2022
(or 2023 if extended)

Seamless Transit 
Policy Reforms

2

3

2

Legislation

Ballot Measure

Administrative Process

18

Governance & 
Funding Reforms, 

designation of  
Network Manager

01/07/2020 
Page 108 of 118



Appendix:  Regional Commission on Bay Area Transportation Governance & 
Funding Preliminary proposed structure
21 Members

● Bay Area State Legislators (4) 
○ Selected by the Bay Area Caucus

● Locally elected representatives (4) 
○ Appointed by MTC or League of California Cities

● State/Public Agency Staff (4)
○ CalSTA/Caltrans Representative
○ 3 Transit Agency reps appointed by Clipper Executive Board (Min. 1 bus representative, 1 rail representative)

● Technical Experts (4) 
○ Appointed by MTC
○ Expertise may include Governance, Operations, Finance, Procurement, Planning
○ Non-Bay Area residents permitted

● Citizens/Civically Active Residents (5) 
○ Appointed by MTC
○ May include Non-profit, Advocacy, Business, Academic/Research, Labor representatives

Chair, Vice-Chair selected by California Secretary of Transportation 
Final Commission Roster & Executive Committee must be confirmed by California Secretary of Transportation

19
01/07/2020 

Page 109 of 118



20Targets, performance measures derived from State Transportation Plan, State Transit Strategic Plan (Draft), Peer Regions

Accessibility
Improve Access to Frequent Rapid Transit (FRT)
Increase Access to Economic Opportunities
Increase Capacity of Transit Network 

People with access to frequent rapid transit (FRT)
Disadvantaged & low income people w/ access to FRT
Jobs accessible on FRT 
Increase in person-throughput on congested corridors

Sustainable 
Mobility 

Move people with less energy and pollution
Improve quality of life and public health
Align transportation and land use

Net increase in transit ridership
Increase in Transit / Active Transit mode share
Reductions in VMT
Reduction in Auto GHG Emissions

Quality 
Travel 
Experiences

Improve Travel Time and reliability
Competitive Travel Times to Driving
Improve Comfort and Safety
Build a Seamless, Easy to use Transit Network

Transit travel time savings (person-minutes)
Transit travel time savings for disadvantaged popl’ns
Reduction of crowding
Connectivity with existing/planned transit 

Efficient and 
Effective 
Delivery

Deliver Capital Projects Cost-Efficiently
Speed Up Project Delivery
Cost-Effective Operations

$ Total economic benefits 
Lifecycle capital costs (per mile)
Benefit-cost ratio
Passengers per revenue service hour, by place type

Theme Goal Performance Measures (Equity measures)

Appendix:  Potential Goals & Performance Measures for future 
Transportation Funding Measure 

01/07/2020 
Page 110 of 118



Seamless Transit Principles  
December 2019 
 
Overview 
The Seamless Transit Principles are a set of seven guiding principles developed to guide local, 
regional, and state decision-makers to pursue a seamlessly integrated, world-class transit 
system that works for people. They are: 
 

1. Run all Bay Area transit as one easy-to-use system 
2. Put riders first 
3. Make public transit equitable and accessible to all 
4. Align transit prices to be simple, fair, and affordable 
5. Connect effortlessly with other sustainable transportation 
6. Plan communities and transportation together 
7. Prioritize reforms to create a seamless network 

 
They were compiled by Seamless Bay Area, a non-profit 501(c)3 group that advocates for a 
unified, world class public transit system, with the input of cities and transit advocacy groups, 
local leaders, transit agency staff, and local elected officials.  They are included in full in 
Attachment A. 
 
Purpose of Seamless Transit Principles 

- Build broad support among cities, transit agencies, employers, advocacy groups, 
mayors, local elected officials to the vision of seamless transportation. 

- Build public awareness and public support for reforms that promote greater regional 
transit integration; overcome resistance to change within transit agencies. 

 
 
 
 
  

01/07/2020 
Page 111 of 118

http://www.seamlessbayarea.org/


Sample Resolution for Passage by City/County Councils or Transit Agencies 
Preamble 
 
WHEREAS The San Francisco Bay Area, despite being an exceptional place to live, faces an uncertain 
future due to several interrelated crises -- decreasing housing affordability, increasing congestion, rising 
pollution, and widening inequality -- which are exacerbated by an inadequate and poorly-performing 
public transportation system; 
 
WHEREAS, Despite billions of dollars of investments in new transportation infrastructure over the past 
five decades, public transit in the Bay Area has failed to attract large numbers of new riders, and has 
never been used by more than 12% of the population for commute trips since 1970; by contrast 
automobiles have always been used for over 75% of commute trips;  1

 
WHEREAS The quality of and usage of public transit in the Bay Area has declined in recent years, with 
transit trips per capita declining by 10%, average bus speeds declining by 9%, and transit commute times 
increasing by 11% between 2001 and 2016 ; 2

 
WHEREAS The California Air Resources Board reported in 2018 that no California regions, including the 
Bay Area, are on track to meet their greenhouse gas reduction targets, with increasing Vehicle Miles 
Travelled (VMT) and declines in transit ridership cited as a primary factors;  3

 
WHEREAS Using public transit in the Bay Area is inconvenient and costly for many types of trips, 
requiring riders to: use multiple transit systems operated independently with little coordination; pay 
multiple separate fares; experience unpredictable transfers; and navigate different wayfinding systems 
and brand identities;  4

 
WHEREAS Low income people, many of whom have experienced displacement and have long commutes 
requiring multiple transit services, are among the most adversely affected the Bay Area’s poorly 
integrated public transportation system, experiencing a significant financial burden from needing to pay 
multiple separate transit fares or being forced into costly vehicle ownership;  5

 
WHEREAS Regions with high-ridership public transportation systems are, by contrast, characterized by 
highly integrated networks of quality local and regional transit services that make traveling without a 
private automobile convenient and easy for all types of trips, featuring aligned routes and schedules, 
coordinated transfers, high quality transit hubs, common branding and customer information, and other 
common regional customer experience standards.   6 7

 

1 MTC Vital Signs http://www.vitalsigns.mtc.ca.gov/commute-mode-choice 
2 MTC Vital Signs and National Transit Database  
3 2018 Progress Report: California’s Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act , California Air Resources 
Board, https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2018-11/Final2018Report_SB150_112618_02_Report.pdf 
4 Seamless Transit , SPUR, (2015) 
https://www.spur.org/sites/default/files/publications_pdfs/SPUR_Seamless_Transit.pdf 
5 Regional Means-Based Transit Fare Pricing Study:  Policies and Conditions Memo (2016), p. 62, MTC 
https://mtc.ca.gov/sites/default/files/1_MTC_Means_Based_TM_1_DRAFT_FINAL.pdf 
6 Ralph Buehler & John Pucher (2012) Demand for Public Transport in Germany and the USA: An Analysis of Rider 
Characteristics, Transport Reviews, 32:5, 541-567, DOI 
7 HiTrans Best Practice Guide 2:  Public Transport - Planning the Networks, HiTrans, European Union Interreg IIIB 
(North Sea Region) http://www.civitas.no/assets/hitrans2publictransportplanningthe-networks.pdf 

01/07/2020 
Page 112 of 118

http://www.vitalsigns.mtc.ca.gov/commute-mode-choice
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2018-11/Final2018Report_SB150_112618_02_Report.pdf
https://www.spur.org/sites/default/files/publications_pdfs/SPUR_Seamless_Transit.pdf
https://mtc.ca.gov/sites/default/files/1_MTC_Means_Based_TM_1_DRAFT_FINAL.pdf
http://www.civitas.no/assets/hitrans2publictransportplanningthe-networks.pdf


WHEREAS Regions that have successfully integrated and simplified transit fares have experienced many 
broad social benefits, including a shift in travel from private cars to public transit, an increase in overall 
public transit usage, and expanded mobility options and cost savings for riders.  8

Resolution 
(1) NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY     [City/County/Transit Agency]    AS FOLLOWS:

[This agency] affirms commitment to working collaboratively with State agencies, MTC, municipalities and 
other public agencies develop a highly integrated regional transportation system that provides convenient, 
seamless, and affordable transit for customers.  

The [Agency Board of Directors] supports the Seamless Transit Principles listed in Attachment (A), and 
agrees [City/Transit Agency] to be publicly listed as a supporter. 

8 Sharaby, Nir & Shiftan, Yoram. (2012). The impact of fare integration on travel behavior and transit 
ridership. Transport Policy. 21. 10.1016/j.tranpol.2012.01.015. 

01/07/2020 
Page 113 of 118



ATTACHMENT A 
The Seamless Transit Principles   Viewable at: www.seamlessbayarea.org/seamless-transit-principles 
 

 

1) Run all Bay Area transit as one easy-to-use system 
Public transit should work as one seamless, connected, and convenient network across the San 
Francisco Bay Area and beyond. Getting around on transit should be as fast and easy as driving a 
car. Coordinated bus, rail, and ferry routes and schedules should encourage effortless transfers. 
Consistent and clear customer information, branding, and maps should make using transit simple 
and dignified. 

 

2) Put riders first 
Riders should feel comfortable when using transit and be treated like valued customers. Public 
transit agencies must do more to listen to riders and continuously improve service. They must 
prioritize riders’ needs above all else, and overcome all operational, political and bureaucratic 
barriers to provide an excellent and seamless customer experience.  

 

3) Make public transit equitable and accessible to all 
People of all income levels, ages, abilities, genders, and backgrounds should have access to 
world-class public transit. People who are the most reliant on transit are best served by a universal, 
inclusive, regionally integrated, connected system that is used by all.  People with limited means to 
pay for transit should be provided with discounts. 

 

4) Align transit prices and passes to be simple, fair, and affordable 
Transit should provide good value for money. Fares across the region’s 27 public transit agencies 
must be aligned into a consistent, fair, and affordable system that encourages using transit for all 
types of trips and doesn’t punish riders for transferring. Cost-effective monthly passes should work 
across the Bay Area and should be widely available to individuals, employers, and schools. 

 

5) Connect effortlessly with other sustainable transportation 
A person’s journey does not end when they get off a bus or exit a station. Excellent pedestrian, 
bicycle, and other pollution-free transportation options should seamlessly connect public transit to 
communities and destinations, supporting door-to-door trips that don’t require a car. 

 

6) Plan communities and transportation together 
High quality public transit should be at the heart of communities across the Bay Area.  Transportation 
should be closely aligned with our region’s land use, promoting a connected network of 
transit-oriented, walkable communities that expands access to affordable housing and job 
opportunities, and reduces car travel and greenhouse gas emissions. 

 

7) Prioritize reforms to create a seamless network 
A regionally integrated, world-class transit system won’t happen on its own -- it will take leadership, 
unprecedented levels of cooperation, and changes to existing local, regional, and state policies. The 
cities, counties, public transit agencies, regional authorities, business leaders, advocacy groups and 
elected representatives of the San Francisco Bay Area and Northern California megaregion must 
prioritize the broad public interest and urgently work together collaboratively to advance critical 
reforms. Our future depends on it! 

 
 

01/07/2020 
Page 114 of 118



Thursday, January 2, 2020 at 2:33:53 PM Pacific Standard Time

Page 1 of 1

Subject: Reques&ng Feedback from the Ci&es Associa&on on a Poten&al Legisla&ve Proposal
Date: Thursday, January 2, 2020 at 1:25:31 PM Pacific Standard Time
From: Palacherla, Neelima
To: Andi Jordan
ADachments: Ci&es Associa&on Feedback on Omnibus Proposal 2020.pdf

Hi Andi,
Thank you for agreeing to place this item on the Ci&es Associa&on Mee&ng Agenda in January 2020. Please
see aOached memo and let me know if you have any ques&ons or need addi&onal informa&on.    
Thank you.
Happy New Year!
Neelima.
 
Neelima Palacherla, Execu&ve Officer
LAFCO of Santa Clara County
777 North First Street, Suite 410
San Jose, CA 95112
(408) 993-4713
TwiOer: @SantaClaraLAFCO
www.SantaClaraLAFCO.org
 
 
NOTICE: This email message and/or its attachments may contain information that is confidential or restricted.  It is intended only for the individuals
named as recipients in the message.  If you are NOT an authorized recipient, you are prohibited from using, delivering, distributing, printing, copying,
or disclosing the message or its content to others and must delete the message from your computer.  If you have received this message in error,
please notify the sender by return email
 

01/07/2020 
Page 115 of 118

https://twitter.com/SantaClaraLAFCO
http://www.santaclaralafco.org/


 

DATE:   January 2, 2020 

TO:   Santa Clara County Cities Association 

FROM:  Neelima Palacherla, LAFCO Executive Officer 

SUBJECT:   REQUESTING FEEDBACK ON POTENTIAL LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL 

I am writing to solicit feedback from the Cities on a legislative proposal to delete a 
restriction related to the Santa Clara LAFCO commissioner appointments, 
specifically, the criteria for public member appointments as it relates to city 
representation on the commission.  
 
Each year, the California Association of LAFCOs (CALAFCO) submits legislative 
proposals for improving or clarifying the Cortese Knox Hertzberg Act – the State 
Law that governs Local Agency Formation Commissions. This year, one of the items 
that CALAFCO is considering for submission to the Assembly Local Government 
Committee’s Omnibus Bill proposal relates to the appointment of Santa Clara LAFCO 
commissioners. Specifically, the proposal is to delete the following existing 
restriction concerning the Public Member appointment currently found in 
Government Code §56327(d).  

The [public]member shall not be a resident of a city which is already 
represented on the commission. The commission may also appoint an alternate 
member, who shall not be a resident of a city represented on the commission.  

This restriction is specific to Santa Clara LAFCO and does not apply to public or 
alternate public members at any of the other LAFCOs including the LAFCOs with the 
special seats. Santa Clara LAFCO has a provision for a special seat for the City of San 
Jose similar to a few other LAFCOs such as Kern, Sacramento, San Diego and Los 
Angeles that also have special seats on their commissions.  

The Legislative Intent file for AB 2003 (1981-1982), the bill that originally added 
the special seat for San Jose and the restriction for the public member on Santa Clara 
LAFCO, does not document a specific explanation for the restriction. The files 
indicate that there was local opposition to providing a special seat for San Jose and it 
appears that the public member restriction was included to pacify the opposition 
and ensure that LAFCO membership would not be dominated by San Jose 
representation. This is a less central concern since 2013 when Santa Clara LAFCO 
became a seven-member commission with the addition of two special district seats.   

01/07/2020 
Page 116 of 118



Deletion of this restriction would create uniformity amongst the public member 
provisions for all LAFCOs with special seats. Importantly, it would eliminate the 
automatic restriction that precludes San Jose residents, who comprise over half of 
the County’s population, from ever serving as public members on LAFCO. 
Additionally, it would no longer prevent the Cities Selection Committee from 
selecting potential representatives from cities where the current public or alternate 
public member reside. Thus, the proposed revision would create consistency and 
remove unnecessary limitations for a large segment of the County’s population to 
serve on the Commission.  

Santa Clara LAFCO discussed this matter on February 7, 2018 under Agenda Item 
#11, and the Commission voted to support the proposed deletion of the restriction. 
The CALAFCO Legislative Committee has requested that Santa Clara LAFCO get 
feedback from the cities about the proposed deletion to gauge local agency support 
for the proposed change.  

Thank you for your time and consideration of this important matter. 

 

 
 
 
      

01/07/2020 
Page 117 of 118



FASTER Bay Area: Guiding Principles for Engagement on a Regional Transportation Measure 

North and West Sector Cities of Santa Clara County 

Draft “principles for support” of FASTER Bay Area that could be endorsed by cities and advocated with 
legislators and other agencies. 

1. Support for a Bold, Transformative Strategy:  The Bay Area needs a new revenue source to create a
transformative transportation system. 

a. Simply adding funding to the currently fragmented and inefficient transit landscape is not
transformative.  A concrete decision-making and operating framework must be established
to achieve the goals of a coordinated and connected transportation strategy.

b. From a user’s perspective, the system must be seamless and accessible.
c. This system must take advantage of new and evolving technologies and reexamining current

systems and infrastructure.

2. Revenue mechanism:  Reliance on sales tax must be part of a larger diverse mix of funding
mechanisms, recognizing the need for an equitable distribution of costs to those who benefit.

3. Ensure efficiency and effectiveness of existing systems:  While exploring transformative strategies,
new revenues must support effective existing transit systems, including ongoing funding for Caltrain
and other cost-effective transit systems.

4. Clear and accountable governance for funding allocations:  Governance and funding allocations
must reflect current and projected employment and population. A lead decision-making role for
MTC must be supported by a meaningful committee structure that involves regional representation
such as the Cities Association of Santa Clara County.

01/07/2020 
Page 118 of 118


	2019-11-14  Board DRAFT MINUTES 
	Management Report August 2019
	2019-11-30 BudgetvsActualsFY2020CASCC-FY20PLClasses (3)
	201912-6 Holiday Party Budget vs. actual 
	2019-10  ESA INvoice pdf
	Invoice
	Expensesheet
	Expenses
	Unit Log

	2019-11 ESA invoice
	Invoice
	Expensesheet
	Expenses

	Valley Water Request Model water efficiency standards  - request to  present 
	2019-08-25_Model_Water_Efficiency_Ordinance_Background_Document-Final-Cl...
	2019-08-25_Model_Water_Efficiency_Ordinance_Final-Clean
	2019-08-25_Water_Efficiency_Ordinance_Filing_Instructions_Final-Clean
	Request for Presentation to Cities Association Board[1]
	Seamless Bay Area Policy Proposal - 7.4 (1)
	2019-12-16 Seamless Transit Principles Support Resolution-references
	2020-1-2 LAFCO email 
	2020-1-2 LAFCO letter Cities Association Feedback on Omnibus Proposal 2020
	FASTER Draft Principles 121619 clean 



